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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Last year I reported on your Company’s successful transiton from a single project gas storage development business to one with
an increasing focus on o1l and gas exploration In 2013 our small and dedicated management team has made considerable progress
further mingaung delvery risk associated wath each of our three major projects - the exploranion licences located in Country
Antrim, Northern Ireland (PL1/10) and Dorset (P1918) plus the Islandmagee natural gas storage project in Northern Ireland Thus
has been achreved against a background of increasing public scrutiny and legislatve regulation on-shore 1n the UK, which has had
the inevitable consequence of creating some delay 1n bringing projects to matunty Although the availability of new funding for oul
and gas exploration on this scale has also been disappointing across the entire sector during this period I am pleased to report that
continued shareholder support has enabled the company to weather the delays and remain well placed to face the comung year

In Northern Ireland on licence PL1/10 we are at an advanced stage of securing the necessary consents and approvals to dnll having
carlier identified a swieable site for a first exploration well and engaged with the landowners The prospectwity of this licence 1s very
exciting indeed, offering the potenual for very significant upside in shareholder value We have made tremendous progress on the
offshore Dorset hcence P1918 where Dorsct County Counal resolved to grant planning permussion for a first exploranion well after
year end We plan to drill from an en-shore location at Califorma Quarry to the offshore Purbeck Prospect The licence 15 1n an area
where successful exploration has been carried out in the past and there 15 a proven petroleumn source

On both our exploration projects we have now reached a stage where we can be confident that subject 1o successful completion of
funding arrangements we can look forward to drlling the wells during 2014 This may be later than we had originally anticipated but
the opportunity to unlock sigruficant shareholder value on each remains undiuted

We have also progressed the Islandmagee natural gas storage project in Northern Ireland, funded by BP Gas Marketing since early
2012, wath the intention of disposing of an interest in the project when a new developer to complete the construction has been
wdentified An 1ssue that continues to hinder progress on this project 1s lack of confirmation of the cross-border regulatory regime
within which the facility will operate Once recerved this will tngger dnlhing of the first well and that in turn wall move us towards
the intended disposal of an interest in the project In this context it was, however, extremely encouraging to sec the project idennfied
as being of significance 1n the broader European context when 1t was hsted as a Project of Common Interest by the European
Commuission and was then prequahified for potental debt guarantee support under HM Treasury's UK Guarantee Scheme These are
both very significant elements tn enhancing the artractuveness of the project to potential investors

Your Company’s priorities remain focussed upon the delivery of value to shareholders on each of our three main projects in the
short-term Strategically, we are also turming our munds to the future and the longevity of our business The abihities and experience
of our management team are unique and we believe they offer a real advantage through the selection and assessment of exploration
opportunities and the hands-on management of the pre-drilling project programme to bring a project to maturity far qucker than
would otherwise be the case New business would ultimately require a reinforced management team and reliable source of funding
to pursue new opportumuties We will keep shareholders informed as our thoughts develop on this subject and 1n the meantime the
Board 15 grateful for their forbearance and continued support

1 would like to conclude by offering my thanks to Andrew Hindle and the rest of the executive team for their remendous effort and
achievements duning the year I would also like to record my thanks to Crag Gouws who was CFO of the Company from inception
1n 2007 unul his departure 1n September 2013 to live overseas Stewart McGarnty was appointed Finance Director in September
2013 and has been very quick to engage with Andrew Hindle and the team in doving our programme of work forward

Ken Ratelff,
Non-executive Chairman
2 December 2013
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OPERATING REVIEW

InfraStrata has continued to refocus its activities on oul and gas exploration n 1ts two operated licences within the United Kingdom,
County Antrim 1n Northern Ircland and Dorset 1in Southern England The Group also has non-operated interests in cxploration
licenses 1n Hampshire, Dorset and East Midlands through associated companies Corfe Energy Limited (*Corfe”) and Brigantes
Energy Limited (“Brigantes™)

The Company has also been engaged 1n the development of a gas storage project in County Antrim in Northern Ireland with a view
to realising fasr value for our interest in the project as soon as practicable

InfraStrata works alongside strong and experienced partners 1 all projects and the Company’s small management team 1s supported
by a haghly effective network of service delvery speciahists

During the past year significant progress has been made on all our projects and, having effectively managed a number of challenges to
the programme on each of them, we now look forward to a busy 2014 during which we expect to see the drilling of two exploration
wells and one gas storage well A detaled review of the Group’s business 1s provided below

QOIL AND GAS EXPLORATION
County Antrim - PL1/10

Petroleum Licence PL1/10 (Central Larne - Lough Neagh Basin) was awarded 1n March 2011 by the Northern Ireland Department
of Enterprise, Trade and Investment (*DETI"} The five year hicence covers an arca of 663 squarc kilometres over what the Company
believes 1s a very prospective largely unexplored sedimentary basin

Following the sale of a further 5% wnterest 1n the licence to our associated company Brigantes {(40% owned by InfraStrata) announced
in March 2013, InfraStrata has a direct operated interest of 25% and 1s now carrted mn respect of all but 10% of the costs to drill the
first exploration well and 1s seeking a further farmout to complete the funding of the well costs Brigantes now holds a 45% interest
1n the license - resulting 1n an overall net Lcence interest for InfraStrata of 43% The other partners in the hcence are Cairn Energy

(20%) and Terrain Energy (10%)

The Larne-Lough Neagh Basin 1s a SW-NE trending Permo-Triassic Basin, overlying an older Carboruferous sequence The basin
has historically receved little attention from explorers, primarly due to the thick development of Palaeocene Antrim Flood Basalts
overlying the target horrzons This has been a barrier to effective seismic imaging but wath the recent technological advances 1in data
processing, exploration 11 the basin i1s now entering an exciung phase

Only cne exploration well has historically been drilled in the centre of the basin covered by the PL1/10 licence, back 1n 1971, before
any seismic data had been acquired Drilling 1n the area over the past 40 years has largely been for coal exploranion and geothermal
feasibtlity However this has confirmed the development of good sandstone reservours and seals within the thick Permo-Trassic
sedimentary section Chl-prone source rocks have been rdentified on the margins of the Basin withun the Carbomiferous sectuion, and
gas-prone coals have also been mined to the west in the Coalisland area, and along the North Anmm coast The basin 1s also along
trend from the Midland Valley of Scotland where o1l and gas prone rocks of Carboniferous age are well known It 1s anucipated that
1n the more deeply buried areas of the Larne-Lough Neagh Basin the Carboniferous wall have been bunied sufficiently to generate o1
and possibly also gas

Substantial progress has been made in the de-riskung of the Larne-Lough Neagh Basin play following two seismic surveys
undertaken by InfraStrata in 2011 and 2012 acquiring over 400km of new 2D seismic data which revealed a basin very similar

in structural style to the prohfic East krish Sea Basin with a large number of undrnlled structures In March 2013, the Company
published a prospectivity review of the PL1/10 hicense prepared by project geoscience Merlin Energy Resources Limuted (*Merhn”)
Merlin has identified combined un-tisked P50 prospective resources on the PL1/10 hicence in the Tnassic and Permian sandstone
reservorr intervals of over 450 mullion barrels of o1l (*mmbo”) (net InfraStrata over 194 mmbo at 43%)

During the year a suitable site from whuch to drill the well was selected and substannal and satisfactory progress made in both
negotiations with the landowner and the progression of the necessary consents The un-risked P50 prospective resources targeted by
the first exploration well have been estimated by the joint venture at 40 mmbo (net InfraStrata 17 mmbo at 43%), an increase on the
previous esamate of 25 mmbo following further detailed mapping of the seismic data Preparation for procurement of the drilling
actvitics 1s progressing with the final programme dependant on complction of conscnts and farmout activitics
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S OPERATING REVIEW

The PL1/1¢ partners submutted an application for an adjacent prospective area n the 27*% UK Offshore Round 1n 2012 and the
licence was offered by the UK Department of Energy and Climate Change ("DECC”) on 29 November 2013 Un-nisked P50
prospective tesources of 150 mmbo have been identified within the application area

Dorset - P1918

Petroleurn hicence P1918 comprises Blocks 97/14,97/15 and 98/11 and was awarded 1n February 2012 by the DECC. Following
the farmout of a further 8% interest in the hicence to our associated company Corfe (40% owned by InfraStrata) in August 2012,
InfraStrata now has a direct operated 70% 1nterest and Corfe holds a 20% interest in the licence ~ resulting mn an overall net Licence
wnterest for InfraStrata of 78% Thus 1s subject to a net profits interest equivalent to 3 75% on the whole licence 1n favour of eCORP
Onl & Gas UK Limited (“eCORP") The other partner in the licence 1s Cawrn Energy with a 10% interest The Company 1s seeking a
further farmout to complete the funding of the costs of the first exploration well

Withun and immediately adjacent to the licence area there are a number of active oul and gas seeps A total of seven wells have
previously been drilled within the licence area, meluding the first UK offshore well 1n 1963 on Lulworth Banks 1n Block 97/14 S
of these wells encountered ol or gas shows and three flowed o1l or gas on test The advances in technology and higher petroleum
prices mean that we are hopeful of being able to develop one or more of the existing discoveries profitably as a base from which to

apprase the full potential of the area The prospective resources on the license have been estimated by the joint venture at 93 mmbo
(net InfraStrata 73 mmbeo at 78%)

The focus for a first exploration well 1s the offshore extension of the Purbeck Prospect, an anticline in the east of the licence, up dip of
the onshore well Southard Quarry-1, which encountered od and gas shows within Jurassic and Triassic intervals Only the Sherwood
was tested but fasled to flow The Purbeck Prospect immediately overhes the kitchen arca for the grant Wytch Farm oilfield Thus large
structure ltes largely within Licence P1918 During the year we reprocessed 156km of onshore and offshore 2D data to further define
the sub-surface target locatton In June 2013, ocean divers collected gas samples from an active gas seep above the Purbeck Prospect
Isotopic analysis of the gas indicates that the gas was generated at the base of the ol window as expected

Following two public information events held in June 2013, a planming appheation for dnlhing and testing of the California Quarry-1
well was submitted to Dorset County Counal (*IDCCT) i July 2013 and DCC resolved to grant planming permussion for the well on
2% November 2013, subject to conditions in the normal course of business

The well, to be drilled from onshore to offshore within heence P1918 will target prospective resources, within Licence, estimated by
the jomnt venture at 10 milhion barrels of ol equivalent “mmboe” (net InfraStrata 8 mmboe at 78%) The planning conditions preclude
construction or drilling activities between March and September and consequently we currently anticipate the well wiil be drulled in
late 2014

The P1918 partners submutted an application for adjacent prospective areas 1n the 27" UK Offshore Round 1in 2012 and the licence
was offered by DECC on 29 November 2013

Nan—opemted exploration interests

The Company has non-operator cxploration interests via its sharcholdings
m assoctated companies Corfe and Brigantes as follows

- PEDL201 {Leicestershuire) - Corfe 12 5% interest {net InfraStrata
5%) with planning permussion for a first well (Burton on the Wolds-1)
expected to be drilled during 2014 and targeting prospective resources
estimated by the joint venture of 4 mmbo (net InfraStrata ¢ 2 mmbo)

+  PEDL237/PL090 (Dorset) — Corfe 12 5% interest (net InfraStrata 5%)
expecting to complete interpretation of seisrme surveys in 2014

+  PEDL 070 (Hampshire) — Corfe and Brigantes combined 10% (net
InfraStrata 4%} Awvington field currently producing around 70 barrels
of ol per day

INFRASTRATA plc 3
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S OPERATING REVIEW

GAS STORAGE
Islandmagee project - County Antrim

Islandmagee Storage Limmited (“IMSL") 15 an independent Northern Ireland registered company and 1s a joint venture between a
wholly-owned subsidiary of InfraStrata plc (65% shareholder) and Moyle Energy Investments Limuted, part of the Mutual Energy
group of comparues (35% shareholder) During 2012, IMSL was granted planning permussion for a natural gas storage facility at
Islandmagee, County Antnim and a Gas Storage Licence from the Unbity Regulator

IMSL plans to create seven caverns, capable of storing up to a total of 500 mullion cubic metres of gas in Permuan salt beds
approx:mately 1,500 metres beneath Larne Lough The project has unique advantages including being immeduately adjacent to gas
and electrical mfrastructure, the salt being at an optimum depth for gas storage and close to a water source for solution munung of the
salt to create the caverns The project 1s also designed to access the extrinsic value of the gas storage market in the UK and Ireland by
being able to respond to short-term volatliry

The proposed gas storage facility will make a sigmificant contribution to the secunty of gas supphies for the whole 1sland of Ireland
Ireland 15 dependent on gas for around 65% of 1ts electricity generation wath 90% of the 1sland’s gas imported via a single pipeline
from Scotland The facility, when complete, will store enough gas to sausfy Northern Ireland’s demand for around 60 days Northern
Ireland has a target to generate 40% of electricaty from renewables by 2020 — this will primanly be achueved through wind-powered
generatton A shift to renewable energy sources 1s likely to result 1n an increasing reliance on gas-fired power stations to support

the inherently intermuttent supply from wind Rapid cycle gas storage facilities, such as this planned project, will be important to
respond to the increasingly fluctuating demands for gas to fuel thus electricity generation requirement

The esumated timescale for the project 1s approximately seven years, with the first cavern becorming operattonal after five years The
drilling of a well 15 planned, subject to confirmation on the regulatory framework for the project, to collect samples of the Permian
salt to provide the final design parameters for the caverns

In January 2012 IMSL entered 1nto agreements with BP Gas Marketing Limited {“BPGM?”) for the appraisal of the project and
the optton for BPGM to acquire a 50 495% equity interest in IMSL Under the terms of a Joint Appraisal Agreement, BPGM 1s
funding the actrvities necessary to develop the project up to the point where a decision can be made on whether to proceed wath 1its
detailed engineering design

During 2013, work was substantially completed on securing the land rights necessary for the construction and operation of the
facility and applications were submutted for the necessary marme and assoaated environmental licences to the Department of
Environment and Northern Ireland Environment Agency The well site construction for the Islandmagee-1 gas storage well
commenced 1n May 2013 and was completed shortly after the financial year end IMSL had recewved £1,427,277 from BPGM at 31
July 2013 under the Joint Appraisal Agreement

The next step 1s to drall the well, which wall be fully funded by BPGM and wall provide the core samples of Permian salt to confirm
the depth, thickness, rock mechanical properties and composition of the salt to finalise the design of the caverns and will complete
the projects credentials and facilitate the realisation of InfraStrata’s interest in IMSL Procurement of the well will commence once
the dclayed regulatory framework for the project has been confirmed We now expect the well to be drilled 1n mid-2014

On 16 October 2013, we were delighted to announce that the importance of the project had been acknowledged by the European
Commussion which had given 1t Project of Commeon Interest (PCI") status requiring Member States to give prionty and quick
passage 1n the permittng process and cooperation mn 1ts development [t also means the project 15 eligible to apply for significant
financial support from the European Union i the form of direct grant or other forms of financial backing from institutions such

as the European Investment Bank The project has also been ‘pre-qualified’ (deemed eligible for support} under the Treasury’s ‘UK
Guarantee Scheme’ which 15 making cover of up to £40 billhon available to ensure that key infrastruerural projects across all sectors
1n the UK, those that really ought to go ahead, are not held back due te any difficulty in obtaining finance Under the scheme the
Government will guarantee a certamn proportion of the capital required to fund projects, so that banks can lend more freely in today’s
risk-averse lending environment Both of these developments give us further confidence that the full development of the project can
commence within reasonably short timescales

The asscts and labilinies of IMSL have been classified as held for sale in the Group’s balance sheet since inception of the Joint

Appraisa Agreement in January 2012, in firm expectation that BPGM will exercise the option to acquire a controlling interest
in IMSL and at thar point InfraStrata will seek the disposal of an interest in the project to a new partner who will take the full
development of the project forward
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S OPERATING REVIEW .

Portland project - Dorset

Last year we reported that the poor scasonal gas storage marker, a different market to that being targeted by the Islandmagee project,
meant that 1t 1s unlikely that the Portland gas storage project wall be realised in the near term and we fully impaired our histonical
investment in the project, wath the exception of data obtained from seismic surveys and drilling, which are key for the development
of the petroleum exploranion play

With the decision not to pursue the gas storage project, the Portland site leases were terminated at their break date on 1 June 2013
The Company, through 1ts subsidiary, Portland Gas Transportation Limrted, wall continue to renew the gas pipeline construction
authonsatton with DECC as a potential means of exporung future gas production under the P1918 licence The Company will
contuinue to examne this and other opportunities which may anse to realise some value from our hustonic investment in the project

In June 2012 we restructured the funding obligations of eCORP, formerly joint venture partners in the Portland project, into an
obligation to provide a further US$2 88 through monthly subseriptions of US$120,000 for preference shares in our subsidiary
Portland Gas Lumited In return cCORP wall carn a 7 5% share of the future profits from the Portland project Amounts receved
from eCORP during the financial year totalled US$1,440,000 and the balance due of US$1,200,000 15 included on the Group
balance sheet at 31 July 2013

FUNDING

InfraStrata continues to have no debt and to operate a funding model for our projects which manages risk for our shareholders by
artracting investrment by qualtty partners and thereby minimising our own commtments to pay the costs of exploration and other
project development costs

The sale of a 5% 1nterest 1n licence PL1/10 to Brigantes (40% owned by InfraStrata) announced in March 2013 raised £150,000,
together with 2 commutment by Bnigantes to carry 5% of InfraStrata’s share of the first exploration well Gross aggregate expenditure
during the year on the PL1/10 and P1918 Licences was £392,195 of which InfraStrata’s share was £146,128 We are currently 1n the
process of seeking further partners to fund the balance of InfraStrata’s share of the costs of drilling the first exploration well on each
of these Licences

The Group’s associated companes, Corfe and Brigantes are self-funded and therefore we have no commitments to fund exploration
costs on our non-operated exploration interests InfraStrata director William Colvin represents the Company’s interests on the Board
of each of these associated companies

BPGM fully funded the expenditure on the Islandmagee gas storage project amounting to £951,588 during the finanaal year under

the terms of the Joint Appraisal Agreement and are expected to continue funding the development of the project through the drilling
of the well

The process of securing new partners for the Islandmagee gas storage project, including a lead developer for the main construction

of the project, has been imtiated with expressions of interest recerved from a number of porentral investors The next focused
approach to potenual new partners will be following the dnlling of the first wellin 2014 Securing a new partner should present the
opportunity to realise cash for all or part of InfraStrata’s 65% sharcholding in IMSL. Securing a new partner and commencement of
construction would also trigger the payment to InfraStrata of approximately £1 3m 1n settlement of partner Mutual Energy’s share of
the shareholder’s loan account to IMSL

As explaned above, eCORP continues to subscribe for preference shares 1n our subsidiary Portland Gas Limited Aggregate receipts
duning the financal year were £899,608 (US81,440,000) This has offset the payments made in respect of the Portland site leases
totalling £750,000 during the finanaial year These leases were terrunated at therr break date on 1 June 2013

Post year end, on 23 September 2013, the Company completed the placing of 8,000,000 new ordinary shares at 10p per share and
raised £800,000 before expenses The proceeds of the Placing have improved the Comnpany’s balance sheet and enable the Company
to be flexible about the funding of exploration costs 1n advance of the completion of the farmout of exploration well costs Any
balance of the Placing proceeds will be used for contingency and general worlang capiral purposes

INFRASTRATA plc 7
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE S OPERATING REVIEW

OUTLOOK

The Group’s activittes during the year ended 31 July 2013 and since the year end have been focused on the activines which de-nisk
our three main projects mcluding the delivery of the various agreements with third parues, obtaining consents and approvals and the
contnuing assessment and refinement of the prospectivity within our exploration licence areas

Management’s focus going mto 2014 now switches to the completion of the farmout process on PL1/10 and P1918 and the
procurement and drilling of exploration wells on each these two exploranion heences as well as the well at the Islandmagee gas
storage project Each of our main projects has the potennal to lead to a steep change 1n valuation and future opporturmties

Andrew Hindle,
Chief Execunve Officer
2 December 2013

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Through the work of the Portland Gas Trust, InfraStrata continues to support local communities i its arca of operation The Truse
1 4 registered charity that supports initiatives around education, geology and the environment Throughout the year the Trust has
continued to support local projects both financially, and in kind, through Rachel Barton, Manager of the Trust

Subject to obtaining full project funding, Islandmagee Storage Limited mtends to set up a Trust with objectives around education,
geology and the environment An imitial investment of £1 mullion over three years, with a further £50,000 per annum for a minimum
of six years thereafter 1s planned The company 15 continuing discussions with local residents and commumity groups in the Larne
Lough area with regard to 1deas and inutiatives which could be funded through the proposed Trust Local businesswoman, Judith
Tweed, 15 the company Community Liaison Consultant, Judith 1s collating a wide range of 1deas for potenual funding

8 INFRASTRATA ple




PL 1/10

InfraStrata [Operator)] - 43%*, Brigantes Energy Limited - 45%, Cairn Energy - 20%, Terrain Energy Limited - 10%
* InfraStrata bolding comprises 25% direct interest together with an additional net 18% interest via shareholding in Brigantes Energy Limited

The licence covers 663 km? 1n the Larne-
Lough Neagh Basin which has been
largely overlocked by the o1l and gas
industry, primarily due to the presence of

extensive surface flood basalts at or near
the surface

By applying newer techruques 1n seismic
processing, InfraStrata has been able

to unage below the basalts and thus has
revealed a basin with a large number of
prospective undrilled structures

Key Features

= Owver 20 high-grade prospects have
been 1dentified within the licence and
27* Round Application area with
combined prospective resources over
600 mmbo

*  Primary targets are the Triassic
Sherwood Sandstone and the
Permian Collyhurst Sandstone, with
potential deeper reservoir targets
the Carbonuferous sandstones

= Furst prospect to dnll has estimated
P50 prospective resources of 40
mmbo

*  Site idenutfred for first exploration
well

Forward Plan

= Drlling of first exploration well

[] prirtoLicence
- 27th Round Applcation
— Gas Pipelines

Project Overview

Durning 2011 and 2012, InfraStrata acquired over 400km of new 2I2 seismuc data which
revealed 4 basin very simular in structural style to the prolific East Insh Sea Basin

Existing geothermal wells have confirmed the development of good sandstone
reservoirs and seals within the thick Permo-Triassic sedimentary sectien Oal-prone
source rocks have been identified on the margins of the basin within the Carbomferous
section, and gas-prone coals have also been mined to the west

As with any new exploration province anywhere, the presence of a workung petroleum
basin remains the highest risk of the play and can only be resolved by dnlling Success
with the first well would open up a new play fairway wathin the kicence with muluple
reservorr targets 1n muluple prospects

INFRASTRATA plc 9




P1918

InfraStrata (Operator] - 78%*, Corfe Energy Limited - 20%, Cairn Energy - 10%
* InfraStrata hotding comprises 70% direct interest together with an additional net 8% interest via shareholding in Corfe Energy Limsted

The licence comprises three offshore
Blocks 97/14, 97/15 and 98/11, covering
an area of 584 km? 1n the Wessex Basin
adjacent to the grant Wytch Farm ailfield

There are exasting undeveloped o1l and gas
discoveries and active od and gas seeps
within P1918 licence

Prospects have been 1dentfied with
combined prospective resources over 90
mmboe

Key Features

*  Tnitial focus on the offshore extension
of the Purbeck Antichine

*  Planming permssion approved 1n
November 2013 for a wellstte to drill
the Purbeck Prospect onshore to
offshore

+  InfraStrata owns rights to construct
a gas pipeline connection from
Portland to NTS

Forward Plan

+ Interpretanion of reprocessed seisrmue
data to further define the sub-surface
target location

+  Dniling of the California Quarry-1

exploration well

[ | P1918 Licence

- 2Tth Round Applicatons (I
 —— Gas Ppelnes ‘
% —— OIl Pipelne
Proposed Gas Pipaline

Project Overview

A rotal of seven wells have previously been dnlled withun the licence area, six of these
wells encountered o1l or gas shows and three flowed od or gas on test

The InfraStrata led joint venture purchased approximately 3,500 kilometres of existing
2D seismic data, and three existing 31 surveys, within or adjacent to the heence A
total of 156 km 2ID seismic and 33 5 km? 3D seismic has been reprocessed and the
interpretation of the data will be completed in 2014

The drilling of the cxploration well in 2014 wll target a prospect with gross 10 mmboc
within the P1918 licence

Additional prospects with combined prospective resources over 70 mmboe will be

further evaluated 1n 2014

INFRASTRATA plc




NON-OPERATOR LICENCES

InfraStrata interest via 40% shareholding in Corfe Energy Limited and Brigantes Energy Limited

InfraStrata presently has an interest 1n
three onshore hcences covering a total of

513 km2

PEDL 201 (Corfe Energy Limited
-12 5%) located 1n the East Midlands
Petroleum Province

PEDL 237/ PL090 {Corfe Energy
Lirmited -12 59%) located 1n the
Wessex Basin

PEDL 070 (Corfe Energy Limited -
5%, Brigantes Energy Limuted — 5%)
located in the Weald Basin

Key Features

Planning permussion granted in
July 2013 for driling Burton on the
Wolds wellin PEDL 201
Successful acquisttion of a 3D
Se1SmiC SUrvey COvering an area

of approximately 68 5 km? 1n
PEDL237/PL0%

Forward Plan

Dnlling of the Burton on the Wolds
exploration well in 2014

Interpretation of acquired 3D sersmic
data in PEDL237/PL090

B A
wansea ¢ ",

oG]

I:] Non-operator Licences
—— Gas Pipelires

\~===- Proposed Gas Pipeline
: » +

Project Overview

The Burton on the Wolds prospect has been mapped using both newly acquired and
vintage 21D sexismic data The prospect covers an area of approximately 1 3 km? with
target prospective resources of 4 mmbo

A number of structural prospects and leads have been mapped using existing vintage
2D sewsrmuc data withun PEDL237/PLO90  Interpretation of the acquired 3D seisruc
survey will further define these prospects and 1denufy locations for future exploration
drilling

PEDLO70 contains the Avington Field which currently produces ¢ 70 bopd (no
decline)

SOURCE Egdon Resources plc

INFRASTRATA plc 1



ISLANDMAGEE PROJECT

InfraStrata - 65%, Moyle Energy Investments Limited - 35%

The Islandmagee gas storage project has a
number of advantages which enhance 1ts
commercial case, including

being immediately adjacent to gas
and electnical infrastructure,

the salt being at an opumum depth
for gas storage

being close to a water source for
solution miming of the salt to create
the caverns

The project 1s designed to access the
extrinsic value of the gas storage market
m the UK and Ireland by being able to
respond to short-term volatility

Key Features

A 500mem (18 bef) fast-acting salt
gas storage faciliry

Project 1s strategically important for
island of Ireland & GB

Granted Project of Common Interest
status by EU 1n October 2013

BP Gas Marketing have an option

to acquire 50 495% following
completion of an agreed work
programme which includes the
drilling of a well

Planning permission and a gas
storage licence granted 1in October
2012

HM Treasury stated in October 2013
that the project 1s ehigible for the
£40bn UK Guarantee Scheme

Forward Plan

Clarification on the regulatory
framework for the project
Dnlling of the Islandmagee-1
apprasal well

Legend
sl * Islandmagee Gas Storage Project |

——— Gan Pipatnes

Project Overview

The project plans to create seven caverns within a layer of Perrman salt greater than
200 metres thick which 1s located approximately 1,500 metres beneath Larne Lough
Samples of the salt will be obtained from the drilling of the apprasal well which will

provide final design parameters for the caverns

The estimated umescale for the project 1s approximately seven years, with the first
cavern becoming operational after five years

The facihty will make a significant contnibutien to the secunity of energy supplies as
well as helping to meet the greater short-term demands placed on the gas network to
support increased intermattent renewable generation
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

The directors have pleasure in presenting ther report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2013
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The principal activities of the Group throughout the year were petroleumn exploration and the development of a sub-surface gas
storage faciliry

General

InfraStrata ple 1s incorporated and domuciled 1n England and Wales

Business review

During the year the Group continued to develop 1ts petroleum exploration and gas storage business

A review of the Group’s business and funding arrangements during the financial pertod and its outlook for the future 15 gaven in the
Chairman’s statement and the Chief Executive’s operating review on pages 3 to 8

Health, safety and environment
There were no reportable health, safety or environmental inudents during the financial year
Key performance indicators

Key performance indicators, both financial and non-financial, are used by the Board to monitor progress against predetermined
objectives

Objective Definition Strategy

We endeavour to develop projects in Predeterruned and agreed project Delwvery of projects to sensible time

accordance with project schedules development schedules adhered to schedules Submut and achieve planming
ncluding submuission of planmng permussion approvals in a cost effective
applications and timely manner

We seek to identify new project Identfy new project opportumties which ~ Develop a balanced portfolio of projects

opportunities are expected to increase sharcholder value

once development commences

We wim to control general and Management and control of group general  Maintain low cost of Group general and
admirustratve costs keeping costs as low  and admnistrative costs adrmurustration expenditure and conserve
as possible cash to the extent possible

We aim to prudently manage Group Management and control of workung Management of worlung capital 1o ensure
working capiral capital ensuring liquidity as 1s necessary Lquidity te develop projects as planned in

development schedules

Our Group KPIs provide a measure of our progress and performance against our strategy Key performance indicators include
dennification of new ecanomic project opportunitics, subrmssion of project planning applications in accordance with project
scheduling, project development in accordance with project development programme, management of general and admimstrative
costs and Group working capital management

The KPIs are reported at Board meetings Mcasurement entails analysing variance between expected and actual progress, finanaal
positton and financial performance Relevant performance measures for 2013 include

*  The prudent apphcation of avadable cash resources The cash balance at the financial year end was £774,745 (£948,037 including
cash resources classifted as held for sale)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

*  Net corporate and adminsstration expenditure was once agan very well controlled during the financial year - excluding gas
storage lease costs and transaction legal fees these were £1,054,008 (2012 £1,068,547)

= No new ordinary shares were issued for cash duning the finanaal year The proceeds of the Placing in September 2013 have
improved the Company’s balance sheet and enable the Company to be flexible about the funding of exploration costs in advance
of the completion of the farm-out of exploration well costs

*  ¢CORP continued to subscribe for the agreed $2,880,000 preference shares in Portland Gas Limited during the year

*  'The Islandmagee Storage Limited funding transaction with BPGM progressing

*  PL1/10 well saite negotiations progressed to expectation

*  P1918 well site lease secured and planning application submatted since the year end

Principal nsk factors

The directors are responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's risk management activities and internal control processes As a
participant 1n the gas storage development and upstream o1l & gas wndustries, the Group 15 exposed to a2 wide range of business
nisks in the conduct of 1ts operations The Group 15 exposed to financial, operational, strategic and cxternal risks which are further
descnibed below These risks are not exhaustive and additional risks or uncertainties may arise or become material in the future Any
of these risks, as well 4s other risks and uncertainties in this document, could have a matenal effect on the Group’s business

Frnancial risks - falure to meet financial obhgations
= Costinflation and over runs
*  Access to working capital

Operational risks - damage fo shareholder value, environment, personnel or communities caused by operational farlyres

*  Loss of key employees

*  Delays in planmung application awards

»  Sustained exploration fallures

*  Falure of third party services

*  Once hydrocarbon production projects become operational there wall be an increased environmental rnisk (for example
hydrocarbon spillage)

»  Falure to be seen to be acung 1n a socially responsible manner and/or fatlure to maintamn good local commuruty relations

Strategic and external risks - farlure to manage and grow the business while creating shareholder value
*  Future deterioration of caprtal markets, reducing ability to raise new equuty funding

«  Misalignment with partners

+  Shareholder sentiment

*  Mix of storage and upstream interests

= Corporate governance faillings

There 15 no assurance that the Group’s exploration and development activities will be successful The directors seek to manage and
mitigate these nsks by developing a balanced portfoho of projects, recrurtment and retention of suitably skilled personnel, through
compliance with applicable legislation and careful management of cash resources and requirements

‘The successtul progression of the Group's actmities depends not only on technical success, but also on the ability of the Group to
obtamn appropnate financing through equity financing, farm downs, disposing of mnterest in projects or other means If the Group 1s
unable to obrain additional financing needed to fulfil its planned work programmes some interests may be relinquished and/or the
scope of operations reduced

Share capital

On 14 June 2013 the Company 1ssued 500,000 new ordinary shares of 10 pence cach at 10 pence per share to Andrew Hindle under
a salary sacrifice agreement which conserved £50,000 of the Company’s cash resources

Followmng the financral year end on 23 September 2013 the Company issued 8,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10 pence each at 10
pence per share to rase £800,000, before expenses, to institutional and other shareholders Following the Placing, the Company has
99,491,599 ord:inary shares 1n 1ssue

Qutlook

An outlook for the Group’s business and funding arrangements 1s given in the Chairman's statement and the Chief Executive’s
operating review on pages 3 to 8
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The 2013 financial year was an active period for the Group during which cash investment in projects was largely funded by partners
BPGM funded Islandmagee Storage Liruted to the extent of £951,588 durning the finanaial year bringing their total investment to
£1,427,277

The Group recogmised cash revenue of £62,428 (2012 £253,932) which arose from activities including operatorship income,
consulting and technical services Revenues 1n 2012 included £150,000 recerved for services to a former joint venture which 1s now
a subsidiary These revenues offset corporate and admimstrative expenditure Corporate and admimistrative expenditure, before gas
storage lease costs and transacuon legal fees of £750,774 (2012 £190,659), was £1,054,008 (2012 £1,068,547)

The Group incurred a loss after tax of £1,642,760 (2012 £19,727,362) The loss 1n 2012 included net losses of £18,420,125 relating
to the impairment and restructure of the Portland gas storage project as detaled 1n note 16 to the financial staternents The loss for
the year, together wath the balance of £19,865,967 loss brought forward leaves a retained loss of £21,508,727 to be carried forward

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2012 £nid)

In accordance with international financial reportung standards, the Islandmagee Storage project assets and habilines continue to be
classificd as a disposal group and they are shown as held for salc and 1n the consolidated statement of financial position - note 21

As a corollary, the net loss attributable to this project company, representing costs that could rot be capitalized, has been classified as
arising from discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive income

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

Portland Gas Trust 1s a charnity which supports mmtiatves focusing on the environment, geology and education with 1its activities
centered on Portland, Dorset In prior years, the Group supported the Trust by incurring and paying costs on 1ts behalf In 2013, the
Group waived the resultant loans to the Trust which amounted to £125,708 As these loans had previously been impaired, no expense
was recogrused m the year in respect of them

During 2012 chantable donations were £250
No donations were made for pohtical purposes (2012 £nil)

PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

The Group’s policy for all supphiers 1s to fix terms of payment when entering mto a business transaction, ensure that the supplier 1s
aware of those terms and to abide by the agreed terms of payment The number of days’ trade credstors was 13 (2012 26) for the
Group

RISK MANAGEMENT

The finzncial sk management objectives and policics of the Company in relatton to the use of financial instruments, and the
exposure of the Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings to 1ts main risks, credit nisk and Lhiquidity nsk, are set out 1n note 24 to the
financial statements

DIRECTORS

-
h

The directors, who served during the year and subsequently, were as follows

Executive Directors

A D Hindle Non-executive Directors
C S Gouws (resigned 25 September 2013) K M Ratchff

S McGarnty (apponted 25 September 2013) M E Hazzard

W R Roberts W Colvin

All directors benefit from the provisions of indwidual directors’ Personal Indemnuty msurance polictes  Premiums payable to thurd
parties are as described 1n note 6

The Company operates a share option scheme and the particulars of share options granted to directors are detadled 1n note 6 to the
financial statements
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REPORT OF THE OIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Directors of the Company at the date of thuis Annual Report and their abridged CV's are as follows

Ken Rateliff (Non-Executive Chairman)

Ken Ratcliff, JP, BSc , FCA, (63) 1s a Chartered Accountant with extensive finance and business expertence He s currently College
Accountant at Epsom College and co-founder of Geokinenics Processing UK Luimted, an o1l and gas industry sessmuc contractor
He was an audit manager with Touche Ross & Co in London before moving 1nto accountancy and finance positions within the o1l
and gas industry 1n 1978 Ken has previously held semor management positions with Ensign Geophysics Limited, Seismic Geocode
Limuted, Tenneco Corporation and Merlin Geophysical Limuted He joined the Board 1n 2007 and became Chairman in October
2007 Ken has been a non-executive director of Egdon Resources plc since 2001

Andrew Hindle (Chief Executive Officer)

Andrew Hindle, BSc,MSc, PhD, FGS, CGeol, (51) 1s a hughly expenienced geologist with over 25 years worldwide expenence He
holds a degree 1n Geological Sciences gained mn 1983 from Leeds Uriversity and, following a year wath BF, gained a MSc degree in
Petroleum Geology 1n 1985 from Aberdeen University In 1998 he completed a PhD (part-tume) through the Open Unwversity He
recewved the ] C “Cam” Sproule Memoral Award from the American Association of Petroleum Geologsts in 1999 He worked for
Texaco from 1985 untl 1996 on UK and international petroleum exploranion and development projects, working overseas from 1990
to 1994 Subsequently, he worked for Anadarke Algeria Corporation from 1996 to 1997 In 1997 he became a founding director

of Egdon Resources plc and, following the demerger of Egdon and InfraStrata, remained a non-executive director of Egdon until
February 2011 Andrew has been the Chief Execunve of the Group since 2005 Andrew s also a director of Geofocus Limited and
Toffee Limited

Stewart McGarmnty (Finance Director)

Stewart McGarnty, BCom CA, (52) has 27 years of UK and international experience 1n both semor finance and commercial roles
Following qualification as a Chartered Accountant, Stewart spent a number of years wath Delortte in Zimbabwe and Hong Kong
in semor audit and techmcal roles Stewart then held a senior finanaal posinon with the Aurport Authority in Hong Kong dunng
the construction and commercaial development of Hong Kong International Asrport Since returning to the UK he has worked with
property tnvestor and developer MEPC ple, based 1in London as Group Financial Controller and wath tie Limited, in Edinburgh,
developing and maintaiming the business case for Edinburgh Trams and other transport projects Stewart jomned InfraStrata in July
2013 as Finanaal Controller

Walter Roberts (Legal Director and Company Secretary)

Walter Roberts, MA (Cantab ), (62) 1s an o1l and gas lawyer with a strong record in commeraial and legal management Walter
qualified as a solicicor wath Simmons 8 Simmons before joining Phillips Petroleum m 1980 He then worked for Lasmo i both
the UK and 1n Australia where he set up 1ts legal department Walter was the principal negotiator for UK joint vennure commercial
negotiations and gas sales for Talisman Energy (UK) Limited (previously Bow Valley Petroleum {U K ) Limited) until 1995 More
recently he was the London partner of Cummings 8 Co and he 1s currently an executive director of Pinnacle Energy Limited and a
non-executive director of Egdon Resources ple Walter joined the Board of Egdon Resources ple 1n 2001 as a non-execunve director
He jomed the Group n an executive role in 2007

Maurice Hazzard (Non-Executive Director)

Maunice Hazzard, (75) has extensive business expenence i the o1l and gas industry, particularly in large offshore projects He has
held senior positions with Phutlips Petroleumn, Hamilton Bros Oil & Gas Limuted and Halyard Offshore Lirmited Berween 1979
and 1989 Maurice was responsible for development of the Energy Division of the Tung Group of comparues, based in Hong Kong,
and during this period was Execunve Chairman of Houlder Marine Drilling Limuted From 1989 to 1996 he was a consultant with
Maritme Audit & Technical Scrvices Limited, consulting to the international offshore oil and marine services imndusery From 1996
to 1999 he was Chairman and CEO of PD Systems International Limited, a UK electromcs manufacturer He 1s also non-execuuve
Chairman of Orbitron Technologies Limuted, a software company

Willilam Colvin (Non-Executive Director)

William Colwvin, BCom CA, (55) 1s a Chartered Accountant and has wide expenence 1n the o1l and gas, and healthcare sectors in
senior management and board positions of large corporations He was Finance Director of Brinish-Borneo Oul & Gas Plc from
1992 to 1999 From 1990 to 1992, William was Finance Manager/Director at Oryx UK Energy From 1984 to 1989, he worked n
a variety of finaneial roles for Atlantic Richfield (ARCQ) Inc He qualified as a Scortish Chartered Accountant i 1982 and holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Edinburgh William 1s currently a non-executive director of Energy XX, the
independent o1l & natural gas exploration and production company

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are disclosed 1n note 6 to the Financial Statements
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DIRECTORS AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The directors of the Company held the following beneficial shareholdings as at 30 November 2013

Ordinary shares of 10p each Number %
Ken Ratcliff 104,000 010
Andrew Hindle 7.422.625 7 46
Stewart McGarnty (appointed 25 September 2013) - -
Craig Gouws [resigned 25 September 2013) 277,226 028
Walter Roberts 1132,278 114
Maurice Hazzard 19,326 ¢ 02
William Colbvin 272,727 027

The Company has recerved nonfication of the following interests in 3% or more of the Company’s 1ssued share capital at 30
November 2013 The percentages presented are at the date of notificanion

Ordinary shares of 10p each Number %
JP Morgan Asset Management Holdings Inc 15,514,600 18 26
Mark Abbott 6,294,806 692
Maven Income and Growth VCT 5 PLC 2,974,013 380
Calculus Nominees Limited 1,858,950 360

The UK Corporate Governance Code

The directors recognise the value of the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Codc™) and whilst under the AIM rules compliance 1s
not required the directors believe that the Company apphes the recommendations 1n so far as 1s appropriate for a public company of
its size The Company therefore does not fully comply with the Code

The Board

At the financial year end the Board was compnised of three Executive Directors and three Non-executive directors whose
background and experience are relevant to the Company’s activities As such, the directors are of the opirton that the Board has a
switable balance and that the recommendanons of the Code have been implemented to an appropnate level The Board, through

the directors, maintain regular contact with 1ts advisers and public relations consultants in order to ensure that the Board develops
an understanding of the views of major sharcholders about the Company All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who 1s responsible to the Board for ensunng that the Board procedures are followed and that the applicable rules
and regulations are complied with In addition, the company secretary will ensure that the directors recerve appropriate training as
necessary The appomntment and removal of the company secretary 1s a matter for the Board as a whole

The table below contains details on the number of meetngs held during the period and indwidual director attendance

Beard Audit Commuttee Renumeration Committee
Number of meetings held
during the 2013 financial 9 4 2
year
Number of meetings Number of meetings Number of meetings
attended attended attended
Executive Directors
Andrew Hindle 9 - -
Craig Gouws 8 - -
Walter Roberts 9 - -
Non-executive Directors
Ken Ratcliff 7 4 el
Maurice Hazzard 7 - 2
William Colvin 7 4 2

$ Of which 2 were mmmally attended as they were to finalise bustness already approved by all directors
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Commuttee met four nmes 1n the year to 31 July 2013 [ts members are Wilham Colvin (Chairman) and Ken Rateliff
Members of the commuttee attended all meetings either in person or by telephonre Senuor representatives of the external auditors
attend these meetings 1f considered appropriate The external auditor has unrestricted access to the Chairman of the commuttee

The role of the Audit Committee includes

- Consideration of the appointment of the external auditor and the audit fee

*  Reviewing the nature, scope and results of the external audut

*  Monutoring the integnity of the financial statements and interim report

+  Duscussing with the Group’s auditors problems and reservatons anising from the interim and final results

+  Reviewing the external auditor’s management letter and management's response

*  Rewiewing on behalf of the Board the Group's system of internal control and making recommendations to the Board

The commuttee also keeps under review the necessity for estabhishing an mternal audit funcuon but considers that, given the size of
the Group and the close nvelvement of seruor management 1n day-to-day operations, there 1s currently no requirement for such

a function Notwithstanding the absence of an internal audir function, the commuttee keeps under review the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls and nisk management systems

Renumeration Commuttee

The members of the Remuneration Commuttee are Maurice Hazzard (Chairman), Ken Ratchff and Wiliam Colvin The commuttee
met twice during the year and the meenng was attended by all current members The Group's policy 15 to remunerate sentor
executives fairly 1in such a manner as to facilitate the recruitment, retention and motivation of staff The Remuneration Commuttee
recommends to the Board a framework for the remuneration of the Chairman, the Executive Directors and the semor management
of the Group

The prinaipal objectives of the Committee include

*  Determimng and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy for the Chief Executive and Executive Directors,

= Rewviewing the design of share incentive plans for approval by the Board and determining the annual award policy to Executive
Durectors under exisung plans, and

During the year and the prior year, the Remuneration Commuttee discussed the continuing need to maintain motivation of the
Executive durning a period of intense activity and changing focus Salaries for Executive Directors have not been increased and there
have been noe bonus payments for the past two years reflecting a commitment by the Exccunve Directors to continuing control
over the Group’s administrative expenses and ahgnment of their remuneration and other incentives to the delivery of value to
shareholders

The view of the commuttee 1s that the salaries reman competitive, but are not over generous, and therefore did not recommend an
adjustment during the current finaneial year Non-executive fees are considered and agreed by the Board as a whole and there has
been no specific review n this regard dunng the period The commuttee remains mindful of the continuing responsibility and reliance
placed upon all of the Company’s employees and will endeavour to ensure that this 1s reflected m appropriate remuneration packages

Nomunation Commuttee

The Company has not established a Nomination Comumuttee as the directors are of the opimon that such a commuttee 1s
inappropriate given the current size of the Company
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CCRPORATE GOVERNANCE

Relations with Shareholders

Communication with shareholders 1s given ugh priority and the Company therefore communmcates regularly with shareholders
tncluding the release of announcements tor the intenim and annual results and after sigmificane developments The Annual Gencral
Meeting 15 normally attended by all directors Sharcholders, mcluding private investors, are invited to ask questions on matters
wreluding the Group's operations and performance and to meet wath the directors after the formal proceedings have ended

Representatives of the Board, at least twace per year, together with the Campany brokers go on road shows during which existing

and ncw investors are updated on Company atfairs The Company maintains a website (www intrastrata co uk) tor the purpose ot
tmproving informasron flow to shareholders as well as potential investors The website contans all press announcements and finana
reports as well 23 extensive operational wformanon about the Groups activities and enguizies from mdividual sharcholders on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Group are welcomed The Board encourages sharcholders to atrend the
Annual General Meeting, at which members of the Board are available to answer questions

Arden Partners ple who were appointed as Nominated Adwvisor and broker to the Company during the prior finaneial year has .
actively been researching the Company and 1ts business followed by research notes being ssued !

Internal controls

The directors are responsible for the Group’ system of mternal controls, the setting of appropriate policies on those controls, ind
regular assurance that the svstem 1s funcuoning cffectively and that it s dfictive in managing business risk Internal control svstems
are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of farlure to meet business
objcetives The internal cortrols cover financial, operanonal and compliance matters and are reviewed on an on-going basis

The direcrors consuder that the trequency of Board mecnings and the information provided to the Board 1n relation to Group
operations assists the identificanion, evaluation and management of significant risks relevant to 1ts operations on 4 contmuous basis

The Group's internal conniols can only prowide reasonable and not absolute assurance against magernal musstatement or loss or the !
risk of fadure to meet business objectives Having thus monitored nsk management and internal contmol processes 1 place, the Board !
considers that the Company’s internal control systems operated appropnately duning the year and up to the date of signing of the

Annual Report and Finaneial Statements

GOING CONCERN

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basts which assumes that the Group will continue in
operattonal vastence for the foreseeable tuture The basts of this assumption s detatled tn the accounting pelicies w note 2 to the
financal statements

After making inquuries and constdering all the refevant factors in refat:on ro the Group, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue n operatnonal existence for the foresceable furare For this reason, they continue
to 1dopt the gotng concern basts of accounung i preparing the annual inancial statcments
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The directors are tesponsible for prepaning the Report of the Directors and the financtal statements m accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

UK Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company finanual statements for each hnancial year Under chat law
the directors have elected (as required by the rules ot the AIM market of the Loudon Stock Exchange) to prepare Group finanaal
statcrnents 1 accordance with Internanional Financial Reporting Standards (“[FRS”) as adopted by the Eurapean Union (*EU)
and have elected to prepare the Company financal statements in accordance with TFRS as adopted by the EU and as applied n
accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Group fin wncal statements are required by law and IFRS adopeed by the LU t present fairly the finanual position and
performance of the Group, the Compamies Avt 2006 provides a redation to such financial statements thar references in the relovane
part ot thar Act to finaneial statuments giving a true and tar vicw are ecferences to thor achieving 4 b preseatation

Unler company law the dircirors must not approve the financial statements unless they are sausfied that they mve a true and far
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group and of the profit or luss of the group tor that perod

In preparing each of the Group and Company finanaal statements, the dircctors are required to

»  select switable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+  make judgements and esumates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the ElJ,

»  prepare the financial starements on the going concern basts unless 1t 1 mappropriate © presume that the Group and the
Company will continue in business

The dircctors arc responsible tor keeping adequate weounnng records thar are sufficient to show and cxplain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accmacy at any t me the Ananeal position of the Company and o enable them to ensurc
that the finanaal statements comply with rhe Compantes Act 2006 They are abso responsible for safuguarding the asscts of the
Company and hence for takung reasenable steps for the prevenuon and detection of fraud and other wregularities

The dircetors are responsible for the mantenance and mtegrity ot the corporate and finanual intormarion induded on che TnfraSerata
P g
pIL website

{ cgislavon n the United Kingdom goterming the preparation and dissurmination of finanaal statemenes may differ trom legislanon
in other junsdictions

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

In the case of each person who was a director at the time this report was approved - so far as the director was awarc there was no
relevart audit infarmanion of which the Company’s auditor was uraware, and the director had taken all steps that the director ought
to have taken as a directar to make himsclf aware of any refevant informatton and to establish that the Company’s auditor was aware
of that informanon

Thas infornation 1s @iven and should be meerpread m accordance with the provisions of 2418 ot the Companies Act 2006
AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoiat the auditor, Nexia Smich & Wiilliamson, will be proposed at the torthcoming Aanual General Meeting
By order of the Board

A Hindle

Director
2 December 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INFRASTRATA PLC

We have audired the financil statements of InfraStracs ple for the year ended 31 July 2013 which compiise the Consalidated
Staterent of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Parent Companv Statements of Financial Posttron, the Consolidated
and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flow, the Consobidated and Parent Company Statemeats of Changes in Equity, and the
related notes 1 to 37 The finananl reporang framewnrk that has been applied 0 their preparatton 15 appheable Liw and International
Financral Reperting Standauds (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon and as regards the parent Company financial statements,
as applied 1n accordance with the provistons of the Companies Act 2006

Thus report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordanee with Chaprer 3 of Par 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so thar we might state to the Company’s members those matturs we are required to state to
them 1n an auditer’s report and for no other purpose To the fudlest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume rusponsibihry
to anyore other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this repurt, or for the opinions we
have formed

Respectrve respansibilines of directors and auditor

As explained more fully 10 the Directors’ Responsibilities Statermnent on page 21, the directors are responsible for the pruparation

of the financral statements and for bung sansfied that they gwve u true and far view Our respons'bilicy 15 to audiz the financial
statements 1 ccordance with applicable law and International Seandirds on Audinng (UK and Treinnd) Those standaeds requure us
to comply wicth the Frnancial Reporang Counal's (FRC's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descriprion of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the FRC's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/pravate
cfin

Opimon on financial statements
In our opinion

the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and the parent Company's affairs a5 at 31 july 2013
and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended,

«  the Group hnanal statements have been properly prepased 1n accordance wich IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

+  the parent Company hinanual statements have been properly prepared in accordance wath [FRSs a5 adopted by the Eurapean
Union and as applied 1n accordance. with the provisions ot the Compames Acr 2006, and

+  the financal starements have been piepared 10 accordance wath the requrements of the Companues Act 2006

Optnion on other matter prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006
In our opiman the mnformation gven n the Report of the duectors” for the financial yew for which the finanuiad statements are
prepared 18 consistent with the financual sratements

Matters on which we are requered ro report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requares us to repoit ta you 1, 1 our

opiniion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kepa by the parent Company, or rerurns adequate for our audic hwe niot been receved

from branches not visited by us, or
«  the parent Compiny finanaial statements are not in agreement wth the accounting records and returns, or

+  certain disclosures of direetons’ remunerauon speaithud by law e not made, or
+  we have not recerved Wl the informacion and explanations we require for our wdit

Andrew Bond Nerie  Contth o W torrsomn
Semor Stanutory Auditor,
for and on behaif of

Nexia Sonth & Willtamson
Stawrory Auditor, Chartured Accountants, 1 Bishops Whart, Walnur Tree Clos. Culdford, GU1T IRA

2 December 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

Contineing operations

Revenue 62,428 252 932
E:st of sales T - —-
C;:ss profit o - 62,428 253 932
Admlnls;;|:e expenses 4 o [1.-35; 782 11,2593551
—D;;r—:t:n-g loss T T o o - {1,742 354] [1,009,274]
Finance income . ’ 9 “;5.566 2996
;are of loss of Joint Venture o "';‘6'" D - [10“306 395}
Ir;pawment of interest in Joint \::n:;rew o T 14 - - (10,624,210}
gc;:;—:;;-g—;\ ~a_s—surrzln;-:o:trol ;f Ir:e ‘ormer Jom; Venture ) 16“ ) ) - o 2 5?27:8"0
;;;re of l;;;_;f_;:snclates— - - 14 T 43 842] [17&,86.“;]
l—_;:b:fo‘—r:;;;at;;b‘—" o ey e e 13,760 650] ) 112597 672
Taxation o msiss o
Euss for the year from contm~u|ng operations T o 11,445 443) 19 597 572
L;ss for the ye:rbf_rom dlscnr:tinued operations o 11 ’ -{1“‘?‘? 298] o [12;:;61-
:;; far the yea:a;;nbutahle to tl'l_:e;;_l:; hu;d;rs of the parent " - 11 642 760) (19 727 352)
C-)ther compre!';;nslve |n-c:;ne ) ’ T R "“':““ """""""" B "
‘;;;al com;;;g;;;lve loss tar the year attrbutable to the equity holders of the pare;t T 11 442 2601 (19 727 342)
;asm and ;:L;J—t—;d—_earml:g;;;::h;re B T _12

Continuing operations 159p 123 30ip
E;\s;;nl—l:nu:d upu_r:;l;:\s o S - [022lp [01 ';];
Co“m-l‘r::mﬂg_;:u‘ d:'scontmued cperallonsmm - T T T 1 -:QT.]D o {23 451p
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 JULY 2013

Non-current assets

Intangible fixed assets 14 3478843 3399473
Praperty plant and equipment 15 1974 7 47
Investments (n associates 14 2627973 2,705 131
Other receivables 17 - 768 102
Tatal non—curllent assets 6108 790 6880177

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 18 B93 563 1114 145
Availabte for sale financial as;ets ) ) 19 12500 12500
Cash and cash equivalents 20 774 T45 1918 201

1680 808 3,044,846
Assets classified as hald for sale 21 4190 267 3205 002
Total current assets 3871075 6 250 849

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 (533 234) {905,730)
Deferrad income tax babilities 23 {179 478] -
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as hetd for sale 27 1149 540| 173,032)
Total current Liabilities 1862 274| {978,782)
Net current assets 5 008 801 5272067

Non-current Lrabilities

Deterred income tax liabilities 23 [706,630) 1 201,294)

Net assets 10 410 961 10 950 948

Shareholders funds

Share capital 25 7149 140 9099 140
Share premium ! 11920219 11920 219
Marger reserve 24 31988112 2988112
Share based payment raserve 27 434,920 333735
Retained earnings {21 508 727| {19 845 947)
Attributable to owners of the parant 3983 684 10 475 259
Non-controlling interests 28 1427277 479 639
Total equity 19 410 941 10 950 248

Company registration number 06409712
Approved apd authonsed for 1ssue by the Board on 2 December 2013

A Hindle S McGarrity

Director Dhrector
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 JULY 2013

Non-current assets

intangible exptoration assets 14 113934 34 564
Property —plan: and equipment 15 ) ) 1974 7153
investments ) 1) 400 ) 400
Tatal non-current assets ) 116,508 42317

Current assets

Trade and other recevables 18 3841702 3423518
Available for sale assets 19 12 500 12500
Cash and cash equivalents 20 730372 1814 603
Total current assets 4 504 574 5,430 621

Current Labiities

Trade and other payables 22 (503 B24] 1858,4638]
Net currant assets 4 100 748 4591985
Net assets 4217 250 4 634302

Sharehelders funds

Share capital 25 ? 149 140 9099,760
Share premmm 11920219 11020219
Merger reserve 2& 8 466 827 8 460 827
Share basea payment reserve ” 27 434 920 333735
Retained earnings (25,753,8701 (25 185 6391
Total equity 4 217 254 4 634,302

Companv registranon number 06409712
Approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board on 2 December 2013

S
A Hindle 5 McGarnry
Dhrector Dhrecror
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

Balance at 31 July 2011 7826433 11848946 8,988,112 322,431  (138,605] 28847317 - 28,847317
Loss far the year - - - -{19,727,362] (19,727,362] - (19.727,3621
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (19,727,362) (19,727,342) - (19 727 362)
Shares 1ssued 1,272,727 71,273 - - - 1,344,000 - 1,344,000
Share based payments - - - 11,304 - 11 304 - 11,304
BP Gas Marketing Limited - Islandmagee

Starage Lirmited option [note 28] - - - - - - 475 489 475,689
Balance at 31 July 2012 9,099,160 11,920,219 8988 112 333,735 (19,865,967 10 475 259 475,689 10,950 948
Loss for the year - - - - (1642 7601 (1 642,760] - (1 5642,750)
Totat comprehensive loss far the year - - - - (1,642,740) (1,642,760] - [1,642,740]
Shares Issued 50,000 - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
Share based payments - - - 101,185 - 101,185 - 101,185
BF Gas Marketing Limited - Islandmagee

Storage Limited option {note 28] - - - - - - $51 588 951,688
Balance at 31 July 2013 9,149,140 11,920,219 8,988,112 434 920(21,508,727) 8,983,684 1427277 10,410,941

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013
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Balance at 31 July 2011

Loss for the year -

7.826,433 11848946 8466 827

322,431 (1390 342) 27,074,295

- - [23,795,297) (23,795 297

Total comprehensive loss for the year -
Shares 1ssued

Share based payments -

- (23795 2971 (23,795,297

Balance at 31 July 2012

Loss for the year -

Totat comprehensive lass for the year -
Shares 1ssued 50000

Share based payments -

Batance at 31 July 2013

1,272 727 71273 - - - 1344000
. - 11,304 - 11,304
9,099,160 11,920,219 8,466,827 333735 [25,185,639] 4 634,302
- - - [568,231] (58 231)
. - - 1568231 (568,231)
. . - - 50 000
- - 101185 - 101,185
9149160 11,920,219 8,466,827 434 920 (25,753,870) 4 217 256
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

ooy st o Sl naine St
f‘iﬁkgv r*’:r‘* 2 'W*’ v Ry
W, &-IQ: *m‘ :ﬁnif, *%“l’_ X

Net cash [used in} aperating activities

Investing activities

Interest receved

Purchase of exploration intangible assets

Purchase of gas storage intangible assets

Purchase of equipment

Proceeds from the disposal of exploration intangible assets

PGL preference shares receipts

Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary

Net cash generated from/(used (n) investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds on issue of ordinary shares

Contribution from non-cantrolling interest

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net [decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of

Cash at bank

Sigmificant non-cash transactions
There were no sigmificant non-cash transactions 1n the year The significant non-cash transaction for the year ended 31 July 2012 was
the assumpuon of control over the previous joint venture

Cash flows ansing from discontinued activities

Cash flows ansing from discontinued operatons are analysed 1n note 29

INFRASTRATA plc

29 (2 249 084) (423 415)
5318 2,596

(146,128) [34,564)

{754,390) (371,510

(368] -

150 000 -

899 508 154,862

_ - 53.574

154 040 {193 042}

- 1,344,000

951 588 475 689

951 588 1819,689

(1,143,456) 1,203,232

1,918,201 714,969

774 745 1918 201

20 £774,745 £1,918,201

27




COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013

Net cash [used in)/generated from operating activities 29 (1092 979) 385,084

Investing activities

Interest received 5245 1,633
Purchases of exploratton intangible assets (146 1291 [34,564]
Purchases of equipment (3481 -
Proceeds on the disposal of expleration intangible assets 150 000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in] investing activities 8,748 [32 931)

Financing activities

Proceeds on Issue of ordinary shares - 1,344,000
Net cash generated from financing activities - 1 344,000
Net [decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents [1,084,231] 1,696,155
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginming of year i 814 603 118 448
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 730 372 1814 603

Cash and cash equivalents cansist of

Cash at bank 20 £730,372 £1,814,603

Signmificant non-cash transactions
"There were no sigmificant non-cash transactions 1n the year The significant non-cash transaction for the year ended 31 July 2012 was
the recogrution of imparrment losses 1n respect of the company’s investments 1n and balances with 1ts subsidianies
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013
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InfraStrata plc 1s a company incorporated 1n England & Wales under the Companies Acts 2006 and 1s domrciled 1n the United
Kingdom and 1s listed on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange
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The financial statements are based on the accounting pohicies set out below which have been consistently applied The estimates and
judgements used 1 applying these accounting policies are summarised m note 33
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Basis of preparation

InfraStrata plc adopted International Finanuial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union effective in July
2013, as the basis for preparation of 1ts financial statements The financial information has been prepared under the hustorical cost
convention as modified by the revaluarion of certain financial assets

Gomng concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis which assumes that the Group will continue 1n
operational existence for the foreseeable futre

The Islandmagee gas storage project, in which InfraStrata ple currently holds a 65% interest, 1s funded by BPGM Under the terms
of a Joint Apprasal Agreement, BPGM agreed to fund the activities necessary to develop the project, including the drilling of the
first well, up to the pomt where a dectsion can be made on whether to proceed with its detailed engineering design Subsequent

to this decision, 1t 15 expected that BPGM will exercise 1ts option to acquire 50 495% of Islandmagee Storage Limuted, leaving
InfraStrata wath a 32 18% holding The directors believe that a further disposal of an interest in Islandmagee Storage Linuted 1s the
best way of maximusing shareholder value by allowing an entity other than InfraStrata ple to develop this project It 1s expected that
such a disposal will provide working caputal for the Group and will transfer responsibility for funding future development of the
Islandmagee gas storage project to the new shareholder

The Group generally secks to farmout the costs of exploration on uts durectly operated licences to manage risk and munimise cash
requirements The Group 1s currently secking to farmout its current paying interests on exploration licences PL1/10 and P1918 prior
to commutment to drilling exploration wells

On 1 June 2012, eCORP agreed to subscribe for US$2 88 mullion of Portland Gas Limuted preference shares over the following two
years The funds recewved ta date have enabled the Company to settle extsting commtments including lease payments in respect of
land at Portland

On 23 September 2013 the Company 1ssued 8,000,300 new ordinary shares of 10 pence each at 10 pence per share to institutional
and other shareholders and raised £800,000 before costs The proceeds of the Placing have improved the Company's balance sheet
and enable the Company to be flexible about the funding of exploration costs in advance of the completion of the farmout of
exploration well costs

After making inquiries and considering all the relevant factors 1n relation to the Group, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresecable future For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements

Adoption of new and revised standards

At the date of approval of these financaial statements, the followng Standards and Interpretations which have not yet been applied 1n
these financial statements were 1 1ssuc but not yet effective (and 1n some casces, had not yet been adopted by the EU) and that may

have an mmpact going forward

IFRS 9 Finanaa! Instruments Recognition and measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

1FRS 12 Dasclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 19 Employee benefits

TAS 27 Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The directors anticipate that all of the above standards and interpretations will be adopted in the Group's financial statements in
future pertods Adoption of these standards 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group

Basis of consolidation

The financial information 1ncorporates the financial information of the Company and entities controlled by the Company Control
15 achicved where the Company has power to govern the finanaial and operating policies of an mvestee entity so as to obtam benefits
from its activities

Business combinations and goodwill

On acquisition, the assets and habihities and contingent Labihties of subsidianes are measured at their fair values at the date of
acquisition Any excess of cost of acquisition over the fair values of the 1dentrfiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwll
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the sdentifiable net assets acquured (1 ¢ discount on acquisinon)
15 credited to the income statement n the period of acqusinon Goodwilt ansing on consohdation 1s recogmsed as an asset

and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any imparrment 15 recogrused immediately 1 the income statement and 1s not
subsequently reversed

When a business comburation 15 achueved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquuree 1s re-measured to fair
value at the acquisttion date and the resulting gaim or loss, if any, 1s recogmsed 1n profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
mcome

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests are recogrused at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recogrused net assets, except that negative non-controlling interests are not recogmsed where the Group 15 obliged to bear the
non-controlling interest’s share of any net liabilities

Onl and gas exploration joint ventures

The Group 15 engaged 1n o1 and gas exploration and development which may lead to production through unincorporated joint
ventures The Group accounts for 1ts share av cost of the results and net assets of these jowat ventures as jointly controlled assets
based on 1ts percentage ownership of these joint ventures In addition, where the Group acts as operator to the joint venture, the
gross Liabihities and recervables (including amounts due to and from non-operating partners) of the joint venture are included 1n the
statement of financial position Details of the Group's o1l 8¢ gas exploration joint ventures accounted for as jointly controlled assets
are provided 11 note 35

Farmouts in the exploration and evaluation phase

The Group does not record any expenditure made by the farmuncee on 1ts account Iralso does not recognise any gaan or loss on its
exploration and evaluation farmout arrangements but redesignates any costs previously capitalised in relation to the whole interest as
relating to the partial interest retaned Any cash consideration recewved directly from the farminee 1s credited against costs previously
capritalised mn relation to the whole interest wath any excess accounted for by the farminor as a gain on disposal

Interests in assocates

The Group has wnterests 1n associates, which are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control and which
are not jount ventures The Group recngruses its interest 1n assoctates using equity accountng The financial statements of the
associates are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies

Dusposal groups held-for-sale

Dhsposal groups are classified as assets held tor sale when ther carrying amount 1s to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale 1s considered hughly probable They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

their carrying amount 1s to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 1n a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating deeision-maker
as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s respons:ble for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been 1dentified as the Board of directors

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the accounting pohicies of the Group as 2 whole Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of gains or losses on the disposal of available-for-sale
investments, investment income, interest payable and tax This 1s the measure of profit that s reported to the Board of directors for
the purpose of resource allocation and the assessment of segment performance

When assessing segment performance and considering the allocation of resources, the Board of directors review informanon about
segment assets and Liabilities

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated deprectation and any recogmised impairment loss The initial cost of
an asset comprises 1ts purchase price or construction cost and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation

Depreciation 15 charged so as to write off the cost of assets, over their estmated useful lives, using the straight-line method, once the
asset has been brought 1into use, on the following bass

Office equipment 20-33%
Frechold land 0%

There 1s no depreciation to charge in respect of capitalised tangible gas storage inclusive of related and pipeline costs as the assets are
fully impared

The carrying values of property plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes i circumstances indreate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Gas storage research and development costs

Research expenditure, incurred when undertaking exploration activities for gas storage opportunitzes, 1s written off in the year 1n
whach 1t 15 incurred

Capitahsation and impairment of intangible gas storage assets

Costs of development of gas storage facilities are capitalised as imtangible assets once 1t 1s probable that future economuc benefits that
are attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and unal consent to construct has been awarded, at which time the capitalised
costs are transferred to plant and equipment provided there being reasonable certainty of construction proceeding The nature of
these costs includes all direct costs incurred i project development No amortisanion or depreciation 1s provided until the storage
facility 1s brought into commercal use

An impawrment test 18 performed annually and whenever events or circumstances anising during the development phase indicate
that the carrying value of a development asset may exceed 1ts recoverable amount The aggregate carrying value 1s compared against
the expected recoverable amount of the cash generating unit, generally by reference to the present value of the future net cash flows
expected to be denved from storage revenue The present value of future cash flows 1s calculated on the basis of future storage prices
and cost levels as forecast at the balance sheet date Capiralisanion of project rental costs are reviewed on a regular basis and expensed
when the phystcal progress on the project 1s in the directors oprmon, sigmficantly less than expected

The cash generating umit applied for impairment test purposes 1s generally an individual gas storage facility Where the carrying
value of the facility s greater than the present value of 1ts future cash flows a provision 1s made Any such provisions are charged to
cost of sales

O1l & gas exploration and evaluation expenditure and assets

The Group accounts for o1l 8¢ gas expenditure under the full cost accounting method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pre-licence costs (other than payments to acquire nights to explore) are those costs incurred prior to acquiring the rights to explore
and are charged directly to the income statement

All costs incurred after the rights to explore an area have been obtained, such as geological, geophysical, data costs and other direct
costs of exploration and appraisal are accumulated and capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets (*E&E™)

E&E costs are not amortised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities If technical feasibility 1s demonstrated and commercial
reserves are discovered, then following development sanction, the carrying value of the relevant E&E asset will be reclassified as a
development and production asset, but only after the carrying value of the E&E asset has been assessed for impairment, and where
appropriate, its carrying value adjusted Development assets wall be depreciated on the urt production method

If after completton of apprasal actrvities in an area, it 15 not possible to determune techrucal feasibiity or commercial wability,
then the costs of such unsuccessful exploration and evaluation are written off to the income statement as a component of costs of
sales 1n the period the relevant events occur The costs associated with any wells which are abandoned are fully amortised when the
abandonment decision 1s taken

When o1l or gas 1s sold from E&E assets, the carrying value of the E&E asset 1s reduced by the gross profit generated from the sale
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairments

Taxation

Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and any deferred tax The taxable result differs from the net result as
reported n the mcome statement because 1t excludes 1tems of 1ncome or expense that are taxable or deductible 1n other years and

it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substanually enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred rax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habihities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of raxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habalities are generally
recogrused for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utlised Such assets and habilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the 1minal recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities 1n a transaction that affects neather the taxable profit nor the accounting profit Deferred tax Liabilities are recognised
for taxable temporary differences arising on 1nvestments 1n subsidiaries, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and 1t 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered Deferred tax 1s calculated at
the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the period when the lLiability 1s settled or the asset realised

Deferred tax 15 charged or credited to the income statement, except when 1t relates to 1tems charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Dreferred rax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agamst current tax
Liabtlities and when they relate to 1ncome taxes levied by the same raxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current assets
and lhabilities on a net basis

Foreign currency

Transactions i foreign currency are recarded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are derorminated in foreign currencies are retranslated ac the rates prevailing on the
balance sheert date and gamns or losses are taken to operanng profit

Leases

Lcascs arc classificd as finance lcases or hare purchasc lease contracts whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rental costs under operatng leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term
Share based payment transactions

Employees (including semior executives) of the Group receive part of their remuneration 1n the form of share based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity settled transactions)

The cost of equity settled transactions 1s recognised, together wath a corresponding increase in equity, over the period 1n which the
performance and or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the vesting date} The cumulative expense recognsed for equity settled transactions at each reporting date unul the vesung
date reflects the extent to which the vesting pertod has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity mstruments
that will ulumately vest The income statement charge or credit for a period represents the movement 1n cumulative expense
recogrused as at the beginning and end of that penod No expense 1s recogrused for awards that do not ulumately vest, except for
awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting urespective of whether or not the market
condition 1s satisfied, provided thar all other performance conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity settled award are modified, as a mmimum an expense 1s recognused as 1f the terms had not been
modified In addition, an expense 15 recogmsed for any modification which increases the total fair value of the share based payment
arrangement, or 1s otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured ar the date of modification

Where an equity settled award 1s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as if 1t had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recogrused for the award 15 recognised immediately However, if a new award 15 substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that 1s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
onginal award, as described 1n the previous paragraph

Retirement benefit costs

The Company has a defined contribution plan which requires contributions to be made nto an independently administered fund
The amount charged to the income statermnent 1n respect of pension costs reflects the contributions payable 1n the year Dhfferences
between contributions payable duning the year and contributtons actually paid are shown as either accrued habilities or prepard assets
10 the balance sheet

Financial instruments

Finanaial assets and financial habilities are recogmised on the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contracmal
provisions of the instrument

Trade and other receivables are measured at 1mtial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method A provision is estabhished when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due The amount of any provision 1s recogmsed 1n the 1ncome statement Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an oniginal maturity of three menths or less

Trade and other payables are imitially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amornsed cost, using the effective
interest rate method

Financial Labilittes and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are classified 1n accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial lability and an equity instrument Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and other loans are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of direct issue costs Finance costs
are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest method

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
as financal assets at fair value through profit and loss, held to matunity investments or loans and recewvables After imnal recognition
available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of cquity
unul the investment 1s derecogrused or untl the investment 1s determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previcusly reported 1 cquity 15 included n the income statement The fair value of ivestments that are acuvely traded in organised
financial markets 15 determuned by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date For
investments where there 15 no active market, fawr value 15 determined using appropriate valuation techniques
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Revenue

Revenue 15 recogmised as the fair value of the consideration recerved or recevable and represents the amounts recewvable for services
delivered during the normal course of business Revenue 1s recogrused as the services are delivered

Operating activities

The activities of investments controlled by InfraStrata ple are treated as operating activities 1n the Group financial statements

Finance income

Finance income 1s recognised when 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the amount of mcome can
be measured reliably Income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate

applicable

The durectors have determined the Group’s operating segments by reference to the risk profile of the Group’s activities, whuch are
affected predominately by location of the Group's assets The Group's head office 15 located 1n the Umited Kingdom with operations
located 1n Dorset and Northern Ireland The segmental businesses activities are the development and construction of gas storage and
associated faciliies, and petroleum exploration

Revenue

Administrative expenses
Share of loss of associates
Finance income

Taxation

Discontinued activities

Administrative expenses

Analysis of

Assets by segment
Liablities by segment
Net assets per segment
Capital expenditure

Deprectation

49,311 3,421 - 4327
(8568 440) - - -
- (24 134) - (19 728]

20,248 - - .
247,890 67,298 - -
(550 991] 46,585 - (15 401]
. - *(197 298 -

(550 991] 46,585 *(197,298] (15 401]
882,522 4,811,862 *4 190 267 1,301,803
(189 829} (715,212 *[149,560) (383 980)
692,693 4,096,650 *4 040 707 917823
- 33394 *724 373 112,735

5,369

(936,342)

5,318

(925 655)

{925 455)
793,412
(130,324
643,088

368

5 865

62,428
11,804,782
143 8621
25,566
315,188

(1,445 462

(197.298]
(1 442 760)
11,979,866
(1,568,%05)
10 410 951

870 870

5885

* discontinued activities compnise the results, assets and hiabilities of [slandmagee Storage Limited which 1s classified as held for sale

as explained 1n note 21
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Revenue from services
provided to joint venture
and associates 150 000 - - 97 142 6,790 253932

Administrative expenses {183 559 - - - (1075 647) (1,259,204]

Share of loss of joint
venture (10 305,395) - - - - {10306 393)

Share of loss of
associates - (83 354] - {91,515) - (174 869)

Impairment of Interestn
joint venture (10626 210) - - - - (10,626,210)

Garn ansing on assummng
control of the former

Jaint venture 1,218,334 1,294,146 - - - 2512 480
Finance income - - - - 2,594 2,594
[19,747,830) 1,210,792 - 5627 [1,066,261) [19,597,672)

Discontinued activities

Administrative expenses - - *(129,6901 - - (129,690)
(19,747,8301 1,210 792 *(129,690) 5627 (1,064,241] £19,727,362)
Analysis of
Assets of segment 1,846,155 4,721,556 *3,206,003 1,383,048 1,974 265 13131 027
Liabilities by segment (547,201) £773,930) *(73,032) - [7653,914) (2 180,079)
Net assets per segment 1278,954 3,947,626 *3.13257 1383 048 1208 349 10,950,948
Capntal expenditure - - =371,510 34 564 - 406,074
Depreciation - - . . 7,690 7 690

* discontinued activities compnse the results, assets and habilites of Islandmagee Storage Limited which 1s classified as held for sale
as explammed 1n note 21
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L
Fees payable to the Group s suditor and its associates

[F8 ey

- for the audit of the Company s annual financial statements 18,400 16,000
- for the audit of the Company s subsidiaries 20,300 21,650
- other services relating to taxation 23 000 9150
- all other services 3,750 6,550
Depreciation 5,865 7,690
Praofit on the disposal of intangible assets (49,945) -
Net foreign exchange loss/{gain] 46,373 (961
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 780 000 180 000
Research costs 10 374 55.791

Duning the year the company sold a 5% interest in PL1/10 to Brigantes Energy Limuted for cash consideration of £150,000 and a
carry of 5% of the costs of the ittal well The transaction gave rise to & profit on disposal of £49,945 (Company £83,242)

Executive Directors and staff [} 5

Staff costs for the above persons and Non-executive Directors were

Wages and salaries 651045 698,670
Social security costs 75178 82416
Defined contribution pension plan expendtture 35,753 17925
Share based payments 107 185 11,304

863,181 810,315
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Executive Directors

Andrew Hindle 250,000 2,610 - 252,610
Craig Gouws 121 800 - 1815 11,280 134,895
Walter Roberts 79 160 - 4,110 11280 94 550

Non-executive Directors

Ken Ratclff 35,250 - - 4395 39 645
Maurice Hazzard 15,000 - 125 15,125
Willam Colvin 15000 - - 15,000
514210 8,535 27080 551825
Share based payment attributable to directors 79,033
Empioyers national insurance contributions 41,843
692721
" ' ¥ s : g *
5 T regra e > Total
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Executive Directors

Andrew Hindle 279,167* 2,358 - 281,525
Craig Gouws 120 000 - 1674 6,000 127,674
Walter Roberts 123 960 . 3 363 4000 133323

Nan-executive Directors

Ken Ratcliff 37,500 - - 1,875 39,375
Maurice Hazzard 15000 - 750 15,750
William Colvin 15,000 _ - - 15000

590 627 - 7395 14 625 612 647

Share based payment atiributable to directors -

Employers natianal insurance contributions 72,000

684,647

*Andrew Hindle agreed during the finanual year to reduce his cash remuneration for 12 months by the sum of £50,000 {2012
£50,000) and 1n return he was 1ssued 500,000 (2012 454,545) ordinary shares

The Company moved the company pension plan from Bank of Scotland/Halifax to Scottish Widows during the financial year and 1n
so doing gave pension plan members an opportunity to enter into salary sacrifice in favour of pension contribution agreements

The toral of short-term employee benefits for directors was £665,641 (2012 £670,022)

The directors are considered to be the Group’s key management
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Aggregate emoluments above include amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted or held
by directors Detauls of Enterprise Management Incentive and other options granted on 1 January 2013 and 25 January 2008 are as
follows

Executive Directors

Andrew Hindle 956,022 D 1046 31 December 2013 31 December 2021
Craig Gouws 458 891 01046 31 December 2013 31 December 2027
Walter Roberts 458 891 01046 31 December 2013 31 December 2021

Non-executive Directors

Ken Ratcliff 143,403 01046 31 December 2013 31 December 2021
Willizm Colwin 57,381 01046 31 December 2013 31 December 2021
Maurice Hazzard 01046 31 December 2013 31 December 2021

Executive Directors

Andrew Hindle 43 859 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017
Craig Gouws 43 859 228 1 January 20N 31 December 2017
Walter Roberts 43 859 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2017

Non-executive Directors
Ken Ratckiff 21,929 228 1 January 20411 31 December 2017

Maurice Hazzard 21,929 228 1 January 2011 31 December 2047

No options were exercised by directors in 2013 or 2012

Key man insurance prermums of £1,940 (2012 £1,927) were pad for Executive Directors and directors’ indemnity msurance
premuums of £19,425 (2012 £23,479) were pard 1n respect of all directors Two Executive and ene Non-executive Directors
particrpate n the Group Stakeholder Pension Plan under which Group Life Cover 1s offered

7. SHARE BASEI_J‘E‘AYMENTL PLANS '

A share based payment plan was created in the year ended 31 July 2008 All directors and employees are entitled to a grant of options
subject to the Board of directors’ approval The options do not have 2 cash settlement alternatuve The options granted are Enterprise
Management Incentive share options for qualifying employees

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exeraise prices (WAEP) of, and movements 1n, share options during
year
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Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
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352,407 150 352,407 150
3284 760 010456 - -
3,637,167 02415 352 407 150

352,407 150 352,407 150

The weighted average remaining vesting period for the share optnions outstanding at 31 July 2013 15 0 47 years {2012 0 06 years) The
range of cxercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was £0 10 - £2 28 The weighted average remainmg option Life
for the share options cutstanding at 31 July 2013 15 8 years (2012 7 years)

The fair value of equity settled options granted 1s esttmated as at the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted ‘The following table Lists the mnputs to the model used ta

value the options issued 1n 2013

Jﬂ. -~
’ T s o T B : oL T, E11E T
Expected volatility [%] 35%
Risk free interest rate 05%
Weighted average contractual life of option (years] 10
Expected dividend yield Mil
Exercise price of options [£] 010-014
Weighted average share price (€] 01061

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the histonical volaulity of a sample of o1l and gas companies 1s indicative of future
trends for InfraStrata plc, which may not necessanly be the actual outcome The expected life of the options 1s based on directors’ best
estimate and may not necessarily be indicanve of the patterns that may occur

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates 4 defined contribution retrement plan for all qualifying employees who wish to partaipate The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent trustees

The total cost charged to expenscs of £35,753 (2012 £17,925) represents contributions payable to the scheme by the Group at rates
specified 1n the rules of the scheme for the year As at 31 July 2013, employer and employee contributions of £5,758 {2012 £3,295)
due 1n respect of the current period had not been paid over 1o the scheme, the payment was made on the 30 August 2013 (2012 10
August 2012)

2013 2012

9. FINANCE INCOME £ £
Interest on bank deposits 5318 2,59
Unwinding of discount on other ftnancials assets 20 248 -
25,566 2594
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a) income tax recognised in profit or loss

Current income tax charge / [credit] - -

Adjustments in respect of current iIncome tax of previous years - -

Totat current corparation tax - .

Deferred tax charge / (credit]

- origination and reversal of iming differences {247,888) -
- change of rate of tax (67,300] -
Total current deferred tax (315 188] -

b] A reconcibiation between tax expense and the product of accounting loss from continuing
aperations for the years ended 31 July 2013 and 2012 15 as follows

Accounting loss before tax from cont:nuing operations (1 740,650) (19,597 872}
Lass on continuing activities multiplied by the standard rate of tax (23 67%, 2012 25 33%]) 1416 687] [4 996 941)
Expenses not permitied for tax purposes and pre-trading expenditure 25335 4,500,328

Other timing differences - .

Tax losses carried forward 391,352 496,613

Income tax expense reported in the profit or loss relating to continuing aperations - -

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit / (loss] for discontinued
operations for the years ended 31 July 2013 and 201215 as follows

Accounting [loss) / profit before tax from discontinued operations (197,298] (129 690)
{Loss) / profit on discontinued activities multiplied by the standard rate of tax 23 67% (2012 25 33%)] (46 694 (32 850]
Expenses not permitted for tax purposes and pre-trading expenditure 46,694 32,850

Non-taxabie income - _

Incomne tax expense reported Ih the profit or loss relating to discontinued operations - -

c) Factors that may affect the future tax charge

The Group has trading losses of £4,003,757 (2012 £1,573,810) which may reduce future tax charges Future tax charges may also be
reduced by capital allowances on cumulative capital expenditure

The Government has announced a reduction in the corporanion rate to 21% to be i force for 2013/14 which has been substantively
enacted

The Group's potential charge to tax arising from its investments in the associates 15 dependent on the source of future inflows to the
Group Inflows arising from the partial or complete disposal by way of sale are not expected to be subjecr to tax The Group has no
current expectation of recewving distributions of profits from these investments mn the foreseeable future and therefore no deferred rax
hability arises
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Revenue - -
Net operating costs (197 298] [129 490)
[Loss] before tax {197 298) [129,490)
Tax charge [note 10) ) - .
(Loss] after tax (197,298) (129 690]
Details of the discontnued operations are given in note 21
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(Loss)/profit
The (loss) for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per share being the net loss attnbutable to
equity shareholders
Cantinuing operattons (1,445,4562| (19 597 672]
Discantinued operations [197,298] (129 &90]
Continuing and discontinued operations 1 642 760) [19.727,362)
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 91,055,983 B4 122 359
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Cantinuing operations (1 5%9]p (23 30]p
Discontinued operations ¢ 22)p (G 15]p
Continuing and discontinued operations [181]p {23 451p
For 2013 and 2012, the share options were not dilutive as a loss was incurred

{;L 13. LOSSES ATTRIBUTABLE TO INFRASTRATA PLC
The loss for the period dealt wath 1n the financial statements of InfraStrata ple was £568,231 (2012 £23,795,297)
As provided by 5408 of the Companies Act 2006, no income statement 1s presented in respect of InfraStrata ple
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At 1 August 2011

Additions

Arising on acquisition
At 1 August 2012
Additions

Disposals

At 31 July 2013

Net book value

At 31 July 2013

At 1 August

Additions
Disposals

At 31 July
Depreciation

At 1 August
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 July

Net book value

At 31 July
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34,564 34,564
3,364,909 -
3,399,473 34,564

146,128 146 128
(656 758) (64 758
3,478,843 113934
3 478,843 113,934

87,028 87028
358 .

(4 502) -
82,894 87 028
79 557 71867
5,845 7,650
(4 502) -
80 920 79 557
1974 747
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ﬁ’;&%}éf: Oﬁlce‘fflfr?en
Cost
At 1 August 17,380 17 380
Additions A58 -
At 31 July 17,748 17,380
Depreciation
At 1 August 10,227 3.358
Charge for the year 5,547 &6 B6?
At 31 July 15774 10 227
Net book value
At 31 July 1,974 7,153
g 1*5‘.“”:NVE5ﬁ,g' NTS, o, | Lvede T AN I B e | e G, e i T
A wgm%#ﬂ?'& ik “‘%» r; 3 ""g«“‘*‘ Lo 0t @ é’*%v"‘" "’%ﬁ’ f’/ ?5‘*"‘1‘;‘? %M%W* }“%%OZ%M?&??%%;%W%%@
< - - i S, T o B T D ke
Investment in assocrates
At 1 August 2,705,131 2,880,000
Ebmination of inter-company profit [33 295} -
Share of losses [43 862] (174 849)
At 31 July 2,627,973 2,705,131
Totai investmenits at the end of the year 2,627,973 2,705,131

The Group has 40% interests (2012 40%) 1n both of Corfe Energy Limited and Brigantes Energy Limited which are involved in
hydrocarbon exploration The associates are private companies, incorporated in England and Wales and are not listed on any public
exchanges
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The following table summariscs the Group's share of the assets and habihitics of each of these associates as recorded 1n each associates’
audited financial statements made up to 31 July 2013 and after making adjustments to align the accounting policies of the associates
with those of the Group

Long-term asset
Current assets
Current lrability
Long-term lablity

Group s share of net assets of associates

Long-term asset

Current assets
Current Labitity
Long-term biabibity

Group s share of net assets of associates

613276 32320
215 101 781356
(10,392) (10,012

(1210} (1210]
816,775 802,454

510 813 376 234
319,839 428,412
{7.411] [7,333)
{1210 (1210
822027 796101

The revenue and net loss of each of these associates as recorded in cach assoaates’ audited financial statements made up to 31 July
2013 and after making adjustments to ahign the accounting policies of the associates with those of the Group
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Revenue 96,052 69,491
Total loss for the year 70073 63,864
Group s share of losses 24,134 83,354
Group s share of other comprehensive income - -

2013 2012
Brigantes Energy Litmted £ £
Revenue 96,296 69,491
Total lass for the year 55 006 60 4653
Group s share of losses 19728 91515

Group s share of other comprehensive incame
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Jont Venture - Portland Gas Limited

It June 2012 the Group restructured 1ts ownershup of Portland Gas Limuted by acquining the 50% interest in Portland Gas
Limited which had been held by eCORP Portland Gas Limited fully impaired s investment in the Portland project prior to the
restructuring and the Group's share of the impairment charge and other losses was £10,306,395 The Group’s investment in the
joint venture was then subject to an impairment review and as a result an impairment loss of £10,626,210 was recogmsed A gan of
£2,512,480 arose on assuming control of the former Joint Venture due to the net assets acquired having a lugher fair value than the
farr value of the Group’s 509 mterest in the ordinary share capital of Portland Gas Limited immediately prior to the restructuring
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Cast
Balance at 1 August 15 247 611 15249 611
Additians - -
Disposals - (2,0001
Balance at 31 July 15,247,611 15,247 611
impairment
Balance at 1 August [15,247,011) -
Charge for the year - (15247 011)
Balance at 31 July £15,247 011} (15,247 011)
Net book value
Balance at 3t July 600 400

Subsiudiaries

The Company's subsidiary undertakings at 31 July 2013, all of which are wholly owned unless indicated otherwise, are as follows

Principal undertaking

Country of incorparation

InfraStrata UK Limited

Holding and corperate

InfraStrata UK Limited owns the following subsidiary

undertakings

Islandmagee Storage Limited (65% owned)
Portland Gas Limited
Portland Gas Storage Limited

Portland Gas Transportation Limited

Sub surface gas storage developer
Holding company
Sub surface gas storage developer

Gas storage pipeline developer

England

Northern Iretand
England
England

England

Under the terms of a preliminary shareholder agreement entered into by InfraStrata UK Limuted and Moyle 1t January 2010, Moyle
acquired a 35% interest in Islandmagee Storage Limited but InfraStrara UK Limsted continues to assume one hundred percent of
the nisks and rewards of ownership of Islandmagee Storage Limited (including voting nights) unul such ttme as Moyle settles 1ts
share of the intcrcompany loan to Islandmagee Storage Limited Therefore InfraStrata ple includes 100% of the results, assets and
habilities of Islandmagee Storage Limited in 1ts finaneral statements and these are classified as held for sale as detailed 1n note 21

The Company imparcd 1ts investment 1n InfraStrata UK Limited investment and loan recevable from InfraSerata UK Limited by
£l (2012 £15,247,011) and £m (2012 £7,894,673) respectvely duning the year The mmpairments 1 2012 followed the impairment
of the Portland Gas Limuted project
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Balance at beginning and end of the year 600 600

The company owns 40% (2012 40%) of the 1ssued share capital of the following companies, both of which are incorporated in
England and are involved mn o1l and gas exploration

Corfe Energy Limated
Brigantes Energy Limited

Other receivables - 768,102

- 768102

The non-current receivables were amounts due from eCORP The recervable 1s denominated 1n United States dollars and 15 now
entircly categorised as a current recervable The fair value of the non-current recewvable 1s £mil (2012 £768,102)

Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 3,791,796 3478924
Trade recevables 20 149 107 829 38,159 107,629
Other receivables 841,561 970 449 - 1,205
Prepayments 31,853 35867 31,747 35740

893 563 1114145 3.861,702 3,623518

An element of the Company and Group’s credit risk s attributable to 1ts trade and other recevables Based on prior experience
and an assessment of the current economic environment, the directors did not consider any provision for irrecoverable amounts was
required and consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximates to their fair value

N T i KD . 4 ! B N B . .
1;,9.,A‘VA1IA£BQE_,FQ“B SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS | - M T :i 2 ' I Lo - ]
I A N A . PR A S L : ' -
N Wt . - . Grodp TeF Group '®” """ 1 Com any ‘Comipany .
PN o, e . . - 3 \ P TSy N B I f>4 i
. i " S 2013 2012 ‘w7 il 0¥ .y - 2012
- v £ ) i ot € £
At 1 August 12,500 12 500 12,500 12,500
At 31 July 12,500 12,500 12,500 12 500

The mvestment 1n securities above represents an investment in Egdon Resources ple redeemable preference shares The assets are held
ar cost as an approximation of fair value Thesc arc the only financial assets which the Group and Company arc requuired to carry at
farr value
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Cash at bank 714,745 1,918,201 730,372 1,814,603

The directors consider that the carrying amount of these assets approximates their farr value The credit nisk on liquid funds 1s Liruted
because the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratngs
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In January 2012 the Company together with Moyle entered nto an agreement with BPGM regarding the acquisition of an equity
interest in [slandmagee Storage Limited owned by InfraStrata plc (65%) and Moyle (35%) Under the agreements, the equity interest
will anise through the 1ssue of shares by Islandmagee Storage Limuted rather than the sale of equity by the Group and the majority of
the proceeds from the 1ssue of equity will be retained in Tslandmagee Storage Limited to fund project development

Islandmagee Storage Lirmted continues to be classificd as held for sale as, 1n the opimion of the directors, 1t 15 hughly probable that
BPGM will exercise 1ts option and the delay in the disposal 1s due to events outside the control of the Company BPGM’s option
will be triggered following the drilling of a well which 1 to be funded by BPGM under a Joint Apprarsal Agreement The drilling

of the well 15 subject to certain conditions precedent including confirmation of the gas mfrastructure taniffing regime under which
the project will operate This confirmation 1s an inter-junsdictional regulatory decision which has been delayed and 15 out with the
Company’s control Whulst there can be no guarantee that there will be no further delays, the directors currently expect that the well
will be drilled 1n 2014, thereby triggering the vesting of the option and thereby leading to Islandmagee Storage Limuted ceasing to be
a subsidiary

Whalst the assets held for sale are classified as current assets, due to the nature of the arrangements described above, the Group does
not expect to recewve cash inflows equivalent to, or in excess of, the book value of the assets so classified The measurement basis 1s the
carrying amount

i .
’ 2013 R F
Assets classified'as held for sale £ £
Freehold land 440,100 440 100 ‘
Intangible assets - gas storage development costs 3,384,145 2,631 755
Trade and other receivables 190 730 64 772
Cash and cash eguivalents 173292 69,376 |
4,190,267 3,205,003
o e S
. 2013 2012
| Liabilities classified as held for sale £ £
L
Current ltabilities
Trade creditors 102,741 69 518
Aceruals 46,819 3914
149,560 73,032

At 31 July 2013 BPGM has paid an amount of £1,427,277 to Islandmagee Storage Lamited 1n relation to their option to acquire an
interest 10 that Company and this amount 1s classified as a non-controlling interest in the Group's balance sheet
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Trade creditors 424,669 818 782 408,953 794,267
Preference shares [note 25] 12,500 12,500 12 500 12500
Other taxation and social security 28231 18137 28,231 17124
Accruals - 67,836 56,331 54132 34.743_

533,236 903 750 503,824 858,636

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their farr value

Deferred income tax liabilities in relation to

Intangible assets (recovered wn more than 12 menths) 706,630 173929
Financial assets [recovered within 12 months) 179,478 427,347
886,108 1,201,296

The gross movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

A R T T FETE

LT _ ,,E;

B e Rk

- “g";t.r.iw »r“m, P m,!" « D 33?@% ,i -
At 1 August 1201 294 -
Acquisition of subsidrary [note 14) - 1,201 296
Credited to the statement of comprahensive income (315,188 -
At 31 July 886 108 1201296
Current element 179,478 -
Non-current element 706 630 1201296

885,108 1201296

Deferred tax has been calculated at rates of 21% - 23%, which are the rates which have been substannvely enacted and which are
expected to be applicable when the underlying assets are forecast to be recovered

The Government has announced that the UK Corporate tax rates wall be reduced to 20%, but thes has yet to be enacted, had ths rate
been enacted then the habihty would have been £852,460
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The Group and Company’s financial instruments comprise financial assets, cash and cash equivalents and items such as trade
payables and other recervables which anise directly from the Group's operations The Group's operations expose 1t to a vanety of
financial risks including credit risk, hquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange risk Given the size of the Group,
the directors have not delegated the responsibiity of monitoring financial risk management to a subcommuttee of the board The
objectives of the financial instrument policies are to reduce the Group and Company's exposure to financral nisk The policies set by
the board of directors are implemented by the Company’s finance department The Group 1s also mdirectly exposed to risks arising
from 1ts interests 1n 1ts associates The Group 1s not required to give detailed informaton relating to these risks

Credst risk

The credit risk on liquid funds 1s limited because the Group and Company policy 1s to only deal with counter parties wath high credrr
ranngs and more than one institution 15 utilised to depostt cash holdings The Group held funds in the Bank of Scotland, Investec,
Northern Rock and Lloyds TSB bank accounts during the last two years, at year end all of the funds were held in Bank of Scotland
and Investec accounts In the directors’ view there 15 a low risk of one of the banks holding the Groups funds at year end failing in the
foreseeable future As at 31 July 2013, the Group 15 alse exposed to the credit risk in relation to the eCORP recevable of £780,341
(2012 £1,706,592), which 1s payable over 10 months

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the
reporting date was

R - Tt ' R " PRt EMAEA A
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Nan-current recewvables - 784,314 - -

Trade and other recevables 800 490 1101,820 38159 107,629

Cash and cash equivalents 774 745 1,918,201 730,372 1,814,603

The reconciling item between non-current recervables as shown above and as presented in note 17 1s the discount to fair value The
reconciling items between the trade and other recewvables presented above and that presented 1in note 18 and 21 are VAT recewvable,
prepayments and the discount to fair value No recewvables are past due but not tmpaired

Interest rate risk

The Company and Group 15 exposed to interest rate risk as a result of positive cash balances, denominated in sterling, which earn
interest at a variable rate These artract interest art rates that vary with bank interest rates Cash at bank at floating rates consisted of
money market deposits whuch earn interest at rates set in advance from periods of 1-3 months by reference to Sterling LIBOR An
effective interest rate increase or decrease by 1% on the cash and cash equivalents balance at year end would result 1n a before tax
finanaial effect of an increase or decrease of £7,303 (2012 £18,146)

Forewgn currency risk

The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency rate risk as a result of the eCORP recewvable, which 1s denominated in Unuted Srates
dollars and, for 2012, certain trade payables, which are settled in Euros During the year the Group and Company did not enter into
any arrangements to hedge these risks, as the directors did not consider the exposure to be sigruficant given the short term nature of
the balances The Group and Company will review this policy as appropriate 1n the future As at 31 July 2013, o the Umited States
dollar had weakened or strengthened 10% against sterling wath all other variables held constant, the Group's net loss and equity
would have decreased or increased by £71,038 (2012 £267,593)

The currency risk disclosures at 31 July 2013 are as follows

usD Euro

Current accounts recevable £780,341 -
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The currency nisk disclosures at 31 July 2012 arc as follows

— T - A i S
"ﬂ?;&?érn : e e
o A : Y. i o] BLgh G PASTTY ah
Accounts payable - £6 145
Non-current accounts receivable £768,102 -
Current accounts receivable £938,4M -

The book value of financial assets and liabilities disclosed 1s considered to be equal to fair value

Lrquidsty risk

The Group and Company policy 1s to actively maintain a muxture of Iong-term and short-term deposits that are designed to ensure
it has sufficient available funds for operations The total carrying value of Group and Company financial liabihties 15 disclosed in
notes 21 (assets held for sale and discontinued operations) and 22 (trade and other payables) The Company issues share capital when
external funds are required The reconciling items berween the contractual matunites presented below and that presented 1n notes 21
and 22 are taxes The following table shows the contractual maturities of the Group’s and Company’s financial Liabilitres, all of which
are measured at amortised cost

Within one month 275,309 951,439 96,341 826,953

More than one month less than one year 366,755 - 366,755 -

%
ki
ANDRED
Frpreis
o

. ‘

Ordinary share capital

At 31 July 2011

- Ordinary shares of 10 pence each 78,264,326 7,826,433
lssue 10 pence ordinary shares 12,727,273 1,272,727
At 31 July 2012

- Ordinary shares of 10 pence each 90 991,599 9,099,140
Issue 10 pence ordinary shares 500,000 S0000
At 31 July 2013

- Drdinary shares of 10 pence each 71,491,599 9,149,140
Redeemable preference shares of £1 each Iclassified as lUabilities] Allotted and part called

At 31 July 2013, 2012 and 2011 50,000 12500

On 14 June 2013 the Company 1ssued 500,000 new ordinary shares of 10 pence each at 10 pence per share to Andrew Hindle in
terms of a salary sacrifice agreement to conserve £50,000 of the Company cash resources Following the Placing, the Company has
91,491,599 ordinary shares 1n 1ssue
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Preference shares

The preference shares carry the night to an annual dividend out of distributable profits of 0 00001% per annum on the amount for the
time being paid up on cach such share and do not carry any voung nghts The Company may redcem the shares at any aime by giving
preference shareholders one week’s notice Preference shareholders may require the Company to redeem their shares at any ume by
gving six months’ notice In each case, any redemption 1s at par and 1s subject to the provisions of the Compames Act The preference
shares are treated as short-term habilities and included within trade payables

Obpectrves, policies and processes for managing caputal

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to achieve
1ts operational objectives

The Group defines capital as being share capital plus reserves The Board of directors monitors the level of capital as compared to the
Group’s forccast cash flows and long term commutments and when nceessary 1ssucs new shares Dilution of existing sharcholder valuce
1s considered during all processes which may result in an alteration of share capital in 1ssue

Ordinary share capital 1n 1ssue 1s managed as capital and the redeemable preference shares 1 1ssue are managed as current habihties

The Group 15 not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

'26. MERGER.RESERVE . SR S L

Company

The merger reserve arose on the demerger of the Portland Gas Group of companies from Egdon Resources Ple when the Company
1ssued shares at a premium to their nominal value on acquisition of InfraStrata UK Limited The reserve 1s not distnibutable

Group

The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the shares 1ssued on the demerger and the combined share
capital and share premium of InfraStrata UK Limuted at the date of the demerger

27. SHARE BASED PAYMENT RESERVE

The reserve for share based payments 1s used to record the value of cquity scttled share based payments awarded to cmployecs and
transfers out of this reserve are made upon the exercise or expiration of the share awards

The transfer in of £101,185 (2012 £11,304) relates to the share opnion expense for the year There were no options forfeited or
exercised during the year (2012 £nil) For further informanon on the share based payment scheme see note 7

28. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

BPGM has paid an amount of £1,427,277 to Islandmagee Srorage Limited 1n relation to their option to acquire an interest in that
company Should BPGM exercise its option, this amount will form part of the consideranon for the equity 1ssued to BPGM
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Operating loss for the year from continuing operatrons (1 742 354} {1 005 274)
Deprectation 5,845 7,690
Exchange differences on eCORP debtor 46,890 -
Decreaseflincreasel in trade and other recevables 62,432 [191,990]
[Decreasel/increase In trade and other payables (372 514]) 801,592
Share option expense 101 185 11304
Shares 1ssued in Lieu of salary or bonus 50,000 50,000
Profit on sale of assets [49,945) -
Cash {used in] discontinued operations [350,643) (96,7371
Cash {used in] continuing and discontinued operations (2,249,084) 1423,415)

(96,7371
(371,510]

475,689

Cash (used in] discontinued operaticns (350 443]
Investing activities (754,390]
Financing activities 951,588
Tl R g
<. B CabniEn
wla g 2 Sl
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Operating loss for the year (573,476) [23,793,644])
Depreciation 5,547 6,869
{Increase)/decrease in trade and other recewvables (238 183) 8 142,456
{Decreasel/increase in trade and other payables (354 810) 721110
Share option expense 101,185 11,304
Shares 1ssued in lieu of salary or bonus 50,000 50,000
Profit on sale of assets (83,242] -
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries - 15,247,011
Cash [used in)/generated from operations [1,092 979) 385,086
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Within one year 15,000 765,000

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for office premises and land which 1s for the purposes of gas storage
facility development

The office premuses lease rentals are fixed for 5 years and the escalation clause 1s linked to market rates agreed between the landlord
and tenant The lease prowides for a break clause at the fifth anniversary of the lease which was on 30 October 2012, excreisable at
the Company’s option The landlord and the Company agreed on 16 May 2012 that there will be no rent review and that exther party
may termmunate the lease at any time on or after 30 October 2012 by serving six months written notice

During the year, the Portland Gas Storage leases were terminated

31. OTHER COMMITMENTS . S h e e e S

Portland Gas Storage Limited entered into a Section 106 deed of agreement relating to the development of the gas storage facility
on the Isle of Portland on 13 June 2012 which supersedes the original deed of agreement dated 17 June 2008

On first material operation of the development of the gas storage facility gas pipeline block value at Osmungton, Dorset, Portland
Gas Storage Limuted covenants

+  To work with the Portland Gas Trust to complete the Engine Shed refurbishment at a cost of approximately £2,000,000

»  On completion of the Engine Shed to pay to the Portland Gas Trust a sum of £100,000 per annum for a period of not less than
twenty years

+  To pay to the Portland Gas Trust a sum of not less than £350,000 to fund projects on the gas storage pipeline route and
Portland

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

InfraStrata plc leases the Group's head office from Toffee Lirmted, a company of which Andrew Hindle 15 a director and shareholder
A fair marker rent paid during the period was £45,000 (2012 £45,000) The balance outstanding at 31 July 2013 was £nil (2012
Lml)

The Group has related party relationships wath 1ts associates and joint ventures in the course of normal operations The Group
recovered overhead and technical support costs from 1ts joint venture of £l (2012 £161,856) Amounts owed by associates at 31
July 2013 were £ml (2012 £ml) and amounts owed to associates at 31 July 2013 were £600 (2012 £600)

Company

The Company has related party relattonships with its subsidiaries, associates and jome ventures in the course of normal operations

InfraStrata plc recovered overhead and technical support costs from InfraStrata UK Limited of £184,560 (2012 £177,242), Portland
Gas Storage Lirmted of £180,000 (2012 £35,746) and Islandmagee Storage Lamuited of £184,465 (2012 £123,282)

The balances outstanding at 31 July 2013, which are not secured, are provided i the following table
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Subsidiary
infraStrata UK Limited 10,878 289 -
Portland Gas Storage Limited 72 289 -
islandmagee Storage Lirmited 735,901 -
Assaciates
Carfe Energy Limited - 300
Brigantes Energy Limited 3122 300

The balances outstanding at 31 July 2012, which are not secured, are provided 1in the following table

Subsidiary

InfraStrata UK Limited
Portland Gas Storage Limited
Islandmagee Storage Limited
Asscciates

Corfe Energy Limited

Brigantes Energy Limited

10,687 534 -
102 247

583,818 -

- 300

- 300

The amounts due from Group undertakings in note 18 are stated net of an imparrment provision of £8,248,775 (2012 £8,248,775)
relating to Infrastrata UK Limited

33. JUBGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY |

Amounts included mn the financial statements involve the use of judgement and/or esimation These csumates and judgements are
based on management's best knowledge of the relevant facts and circumstances, having regard to previous experience, but actual
results may differ from the amounts included 1n the financial statements Informanon about such judgements and estimation 1s
contained n the accounting policies and/or the notes to the financial statements, and the key areas are summarised below

Capitalisation of project costs

The assessment of whether costs incurred on project exploration and evaluanion should be capitalised or expensed mnvolves jedgement
Any expenditure which 1s considered to relate to gas storage exploration research activities or where 1t 15 not probable that future
cconomuc benefits will flow to the Group are expensed Management considers the nature of the costs incurred and the stage of
project development and concludes whether it 1s appropriate to capitalise the costs The key assumptions depend on whether rights to
explore an arca have been obtained, the rock mechanical properties of the halite, the availability of a surtable site for construction of
the required facilities and the hikelihood of gaiming the relevant permussions
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Review of project asset carrying values

The assessment of capitalised project costs for any indications of impairment 1nvolves judgement When facts or crcumstances
suggest that impairment exists, a formal estimate of recoverable amount 15 performed and an impairment loss recogrused to the
extent that the carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount Recoverable amount 1s determined to be the higher of fair value

less costs to sell and value 1 use The key assumptions are the net income expected to be generated from the facilities, the cost of
construction and the date from which the facilities become operational Management assigns values and dates to these inputs after
taking into account market mformation, engineering design costing and the project programme A discount rate of 8% 15 applied
1n determuning gas storage project net present values Salt cavern gas storage projects are long term mvestments and cash flows are
therefore projected over periods greater than 5 years Engimeering design provides for Project life of 40 years It 1s assumed that
100% of a project’s capacity will be sold from the date that the capacity becomes operational, therefore no cash flow growth 15 used
when performng cash flow projections

Imparrments of exploration and evaluation assets

TIFRS 6 requires that exploration and evaluation assets be asscssed for impairment when facts and arcumstances suggest that the
carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount Management therefore consider annually
whether there are any such facts and circumstances and, if so, undertake an unpairment review In making the intral judgements,
management consider the outcome of exploration and evaluation actraties to date and, 1n particular, data from any seismic surveys
and drilling actvities Management also consider the continuity of the license 1aterests and market data, including o1l and gas prices

Where an impairment test 1s requured, a companson 1s made between the carrying value of the assets at the reporting date with the
expected discounted cash flow from the Group's keense interest For the discounted cash flows to be catculated, management use
production profiles based on 1ts best estimate of reserves and a range of assumptions, including o1l/gas prices and discount rates

Share based payments

The estimation of share based payment costs requires the selection of an appropriate valuation model and constderation as to the
inputs necessary for the valuation model chosen The Group has made esumates as to the volatlity of its own shares, the probable
life of options granted, and the time of exeraise of those options The model used by the Group 1s the Black-5choles model The key
assumptions are detailed 1n note 7

Investments 1n associates

In order to establish whether an entity 1s a consolidated subsidrary, a joint venture or an associate, key areas of judgment include

- Quantitative analysis of an enuty including review of, amongst other factors, its capital structure, contractual terms, which
interests create or absorb vartability, related party relatonships and design of the entity

= Rughs of partners reflecting significant business decisions, including dispositions and acquisitions of assets

*  Board and management representation

*  Ability to make financing decisions

- Operating and capital budget approvals and contractual nights of other parties

Hdentification of assets and habiities arising on a business combination

Management are required to identify the assets and labilities anising on a business combination, having regard to contractual nghts
and obliganons and whether cash flows are expected to anse from such rights and obligautons

Fawr values

Management are required to assess the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired on business combinations As part of this
assessment management considers

- Thurd party disposals or acquisitions of the asset or Lability (or part thereof)

- In respect of assets, any costs avorded as a result of ownung the asset
- Expected future discounted cash flows
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The Company previously guaranteed the lease payments to be made by Portland Gas Storage Limited to Portland Port Limited The
leases were termunated during the year The financial commtment under this guarantee at 31 July 2013 1s £ml (2012 £750,000)

Narthern Ireland PL1/10 Larne-Lough Neagh Basin InfraStrata 43%

England P1918 English Channel InfraStrata 78%

The Company has entered into agreements wath partners whereby the Company’s share of intial exploratuon costs on PL1/10 are
largely covered by the partners, therefore the company has incurred net expenditure to the extent of £146,128 (2012 £34,564)
developing 1ts share of the assets

On the 23 September 2013 the Company issued 8,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10 pence each at 10 pence per share to
institutional and other shareholders and raised £800,000 before costs Following the Placing, the Company has 99,491,599 ordinary

shares 1n 1s5ue

There 15 no ultimate controlling party of InfraStrata ple
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN WITH
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Durectors Regmstered Office
Kenneth Ratehif (Non-exccutive Charrman) Blackstable House
Andrew Hindle (Chuef Executive Officer) Longnidge
Stewart McGarnty (Fiance Director) Sheepscombe
Walter Roberts {Legal and Commercial Director) Stroud
William Colvin {Non-executive Director) GLs 7QX
Maurice Hazzard (Non-executive Director)

2 December 20613
Dear Shareholder,
1. Introduction

Notice of the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Tuesday 21 January 2014 (“AGM” or “Annual General
Meeting”) appears on the following pages

As in previous years your Board 1s not recommending the payment of a dividend
2 Resolutions to be proposed at the AGM
Annual Report and Accounts (Resolution 1)

A copy of the annual report and accounts (together with the Directors’and Auditors’ reports on the annual report and accounts) for
the Company for the financial year ended 31 July 2013 (the “Accounts”) has been sent to you with this document Sharcholders will
be asked to recewe the Accounts at the Annual General Mecting

Re-appontment of Auditors (Resolutron 2)

The Company 1s required at each general meeting at which accounts are presented to appomt auditors to hold office unnl the

next such meeting Nexia Stmth & Willlamson Audit Limited have indicated thewr willingness to continue 1n office Accordmngly,
Resolutton 2 proposes their re-appointment as auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting untl the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company at which Accounts are laid, and authonses the
Directors to determune their remuneration

Retirement by Drrectors {(Resolutions 3 o 5)

Stewart McGarnity who was appotnted as Finance Director on 25 Scptember 2013, retires as required and offers himsclf for re-
election Andrew Hindle and William Colvin are the Directors retiring by rotation this year and each offers himself for re~election
All members of the Board are required to submut themselves for re-election at least once every three years Brief biographical details
of each of the Directors appear on page 17 of the Accounts

Authority of Directors to Allot Shares {Resolution 6)

The authonty given to the Drrectors to allot further shares in the caprtal of the Company requires the prior authonisauon of the
shareholders 1n general meeting under section 551 Companies Act 2006 Upon the passing of Resolunion 6, pursuant to paragraph
(A) of the Resolution, the Directors will have authority to allot shares up to a maximum of £3,316,386 whuch 1s approximately one
thurd of the current issued share capital as at 2 December 2013, being the latest practcable date before the publication of this Letter
This authonty will cxpire immediately following the nexe annual general meeting or, if earhier, six months following the date to which
the Company's next annual report and accounts are made up

In addition, 1 accordance with the guidance from the Association of British Insurers {“ABI") on the expectations of institutional
investors 1n relation to the authoriry of directors to allot shares, upon the passing of Resolution 6, the Directors will have authornty
(pursuant to paragraph (B) of the Resolution) to allot an additional number of ordinary shares up to a maximum of £3,316,386,
which 1s approximately a further third of the current 1ssued ordinary share capital as at 2 December 2013, being the latest practical
date before the publication of this Letter However, the Directors will only be able to allot those shares for the purposes of a nghts
1ssuc 1n which the new shares are offcred to existing sharcholders sn proportion to thor existing sharcholdings This authority

will also expire immediazely following the next annual general meeting or, 1f earler, six months following the date to which the
Company’s next annual report and accounts are made up to
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As a result, if Resolution 6 15 passed, the Directors could allot shares representing up to two-thards of the current 1ssued share capital
pursuant to a rights tssue

Dusapplication of Pre-emption Rughts (Resolution 7)

If the Directors wish to exercise the authority under Resolution 6 and offer umssued shares (or sell any shares which the Company
may purchase and elect to hold as treasury shares) for cash, the Comparues Act 2006 requires that unless shareholders have given
speafic authority for the waver of the statutory pre-emption rights, the new shares be offered first to exasting shareholders 1n
proportton to their existing shareholdings In certain circumstances, 1t may be 1n the best interests of the Company to allot new
shares (or to grant rights over shares) for cash without first offering them to exisung shareholders in proportions to their holdings

Resolution 7 would authorise the Directors to do this by allowang the Directors to allot shares for cash (1) by way of a nights 1ssue
(subject to certain exclusions), (1) by way of an open offer or other offer of securities (not being a rights 1ssue) 1n favour of extsting
shareholders in proportions to their shareholdings (subject to certain exclusions) and (111} to persons other than exssting shareholders
up to an aggregate nominal value of £1,989,832 which 1s equivalent to 20 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of the Company on

2 December 2013, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Letter If given, the authority wall expire on the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting or, 1f earlier, six months following the date to which the Company’s next annual
reports and accounts are made up

For this purpose the ABI recommendation for comparues on the LSE marn List 1s 5% although 1t 1s generally recogrsed that for
smaller companies and those on AIM this may be too constrictive The nature of our business and the critical phase of so many of
the projects tn which we are involved, which can both be expected to requare up-front investment and can take a long time to fully
develop means that your Board considers 5% to be insufficient Consequently I would ask that you approve a 20% disapplication of
pre-emption rights to provide your Board with the flextbility to pursue such opportunities without incurring the costs of a nghts
1ssue or the need to market part of the investment opporturuty to third parues

3. Recommendation

Your Directors consider the Resolunions to be proposed at the AGM to be 1n the best interests of the Company and 1ts shareholders
s a whole Consequently, the Directors recommend shareholders to vote in favour of the Resolutions as they intend to do in respect
of their own beneficial holdings totalling 8,951,055 ordinary shares (representing 8 99 per cent of the Company’s 1ssued share capital
as at the date of this Letter)

A form of proxy s included for use at the AGM Forms of proxy should be completed, signed and returned as soon as pessible and

in any event so as to be recewved by Capita Asset Services at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU not less
than 48 hours prior to the time appointed for the holding of the AGM on 21 January 2014

Completion of a proxy form will not prevent you from attending the AGM 1n person 1f you so wish

Yours sincerely,

Ken Ratchff

Non-executive Chairman
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meetng of InfraStrata ple (the “Company”™) will be held at the offices of Buchanan
Communications Limited, 107 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6DN, United Kingdom on Tuesday 21 January 2014 at 1100 hours,

for the purpose of passing the following Resolutions, of which Resolutions 1 10 6 will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions and
Resolution 7 will be proposed as a Special Resolution

Ordinary Resolutions

1 To recewe the report of the Directors and the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 July 2013, together with
the report of the Auditors on those audited accounts

2 That Nexia Srmith & Willlamson Audit Limited be and are hereby reappointed as auditor of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next meeting at which accounts are lard before the meeting, at a
remuneration to be determuned by the Directors

3 To re-elect Stewart McGarrity as Director who retures pursuant to article 87 of the Company’s articles of association and who,
being eligible, offers himself for re election

4 To re-elect Andrew Hindle as Director who retires pursuant to article 92 of the Company’s articles of association and who,
being eligible, offers himself for re election

5 To re-clect William Colvin as Director who retires pursuant to article 92 of the Company’s articles of association and who, being
eligible, offers himself for re election

6 To consider and, 1f thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed 1n accordance with secuon 551
Comparues Act 2006 (CA 20086) to exerase all the powers of the Company to allot shares 1n the Company and to grant nights to
subscribe for, or to convert any secunty into, shares in the Company
(A) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £3,316,386, and
(B) comprising equity securities (within the meaning of section 560 CA 2006) up to a further aggregate nominal amount of
£3,316,386 in connection with an offer by way of a nghts 1ssue
{1) to ordinary sharcholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their exssting holdings, and
{11) to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the Directors otherwise
consider necessary,
and so that that Directors may impose any homits or restrictions and make any arrangements which they consider necessary or
appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems 1n, or under
the laws of, any territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter (including any such
problems arising by virtue of equity securities being represented by depositary receipts)

The authontics conferred on the Directors under paragraphs (A) and (B) above shall cxpire at the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company after the passing of this Resolution or 31 January 2015, whichever 15 the earlier save that the
Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or might require shares to be allotted or rights to
subscribe for, or to convert any security 1nto, shares to be granted after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares or grant
rights to subsenibe for, or to convert any secunty into, shares (as the case may be) mn pursuance of such an offer or agreement as 1f
the authority conferred hereby had not expired
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Special Resolution’

7

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a special resolution
THAT, subject to the passing of Resolution 6 above the Directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to section 570
CA 2006 to allot equity securicies (within the meanimg of section 560 CA 2006) for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred by
Resolution 6, as if section 561 CA 2006 did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be Limited
(A} to the allotment of equity securities 1n connection with an offer of equity securities (but in the case of the authority
granted under paragraph (B) of Resolution 6, by way of a nghts 1ssue only)
(1) to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to therr existing holdings, and
(u} to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the Directors otherwise
consider necessary,
and so that the Directors may impose any hmuts or restrictions and make any arrangements which they constder necessary
or appropriate to deal with any treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems
n, or under the laws of, any territory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange or any other matter
(including any such problems arising by virtue of equaty securities being represented by depositary receipts), and
(B) to the allotment (otherwise than under paragraph (A) of this Resolution 7) of equity securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £1,989,831,
and shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meening of the Company afrer the passing of this Resolution or
31 January 2015, whichever 1s the earlier, except that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which
would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance
of such offer or agreement as 1f the power conferred hereby had not expired

Dated 2 December 2013

By Order of the Board Registered Office

Walter Roberts Blackstable House, Longridge, Sheepscombe, Stroud
Secretary GL& 7QX

1

&0

A member 1s entitled to appeint one or more proxies to exercise all or any of the member’s nghts to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf at the meeting A
proxy need not be a member of the Company If a member appeints more than ene proxy to attend the meenng, each proxy must be appointed to exercise the
nghts attached to a different sharc or shares held by the member If 2 member wishes to appomt more than one proxy and so requires addiuonal proxy forms, the
member should contact Capita Asset Services on 0871 664 0300 1f calling within the United Kingdom or +44 20 8639 3399 1f calling from outside the United
Kingdom Lines are open 8 30am — 5 30pm Mon—Fn Calls to che helpline from within the United Kingdom cost 10 pence per muinute (including VAT from
a BT landline Ovther service providers’ costs may vary Call to the helpline from outside the United Kingdom wall be charged at apphicable international rates
Calls may be recorded and momtored for security and traming purposes A form of proxy for use by members at the Annual General Meeting accomparues this
notice

To be effective, the form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (of any) under which 1t 1s signed, or 1 notanally cerufied copy of such authonty,
must be recerved by post or {during normal business hours only) by hand at the office of the Company’s Registrars, being Capita Asset Services at The Registry,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours, excluding non-business days, before the time of the holding of the meeting or any
adjournment thereof

Completion and return of the proxy form does not preclude a member from attending and voung at the meeting 1n person

In the case of joint shareholders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appornt a proxy, only the appointment submutted by the most seruor
holder will be accepted Sentorty 1s determuined by the order in which the names of the joint sharcholders appear 1n the Company’s register of members in
respect of the joint helding {the first-named being the most senior)

To change your proxv unstructions sumply subsrut a new proxy appomntment using the mechods set our above Note thar the cut-off nme for recerpt of proxy
appontments (sec above) also applv in relation to amended mstructions, any amended proxv appomtment receved after the relevant cut-off tme will be
disregarded If you submut more than one vahd proxy appetntment, the appomtment recewved last before the latest ume for the receipt of proxies will rake
precedence

In order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending notice in wnting clearly staung your antention to revoke vour proxy
appomntment to the Company’s Registrars, being Capita Asser Services at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU In the case of
member which 15 a company, the revocation nottee miust be executed under s common seal or sygned on its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney
for the company Any power of attorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice s signed (or a dulv cerufied copy of such power or authonty)
must be included with the revocation notice The revocation notice must be recuved by the Company no later than 48 hours, weeluding non-bustngss days,
before the ume of the holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof If vou attempt to revoke your proxy appointment but the revocation 1s recerved after
the nme speafied then your proxv appointment witl remain valid If you have appainted a proxy and atrend the meening 1n person, vour proxy appointment wil
automaucally be termenated

In accordance with the permission 1n Regulanion 41(1) of The Uncertuficated Secunities Regulations 2001 (812001 No 3755), only these holders of ordinary
shares who are registered on the Company’s share register at 18 00 hours on 17 January 2014 shall be entitled to attend the above Annuai General Meeting (or,
1n the case of an adjourned meeting, 18 00 hours on the day which 1s two days before the adjourned meenng) and to vote 1 respect of the number of shares
regustered in their names at that tme Changes to entnes on the share register after 18 00 hours on 17 January 2014 shall be disregarded in determining the
rights of any person to artend and/or vorte at the Annual General Meeting

If the Chasrman, as 2 result of any proxy appointments, 1s given discretton as ro how the votes the subject of those proxies are to be cast and the voung nights

in respect of those discretionary proxies, when added to the interests in the Company's secunues already held by the Chairman, result in the Chairman

holding such number of vorng rights that he has & nonfizble obligution under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Chairman will make the necessary
notifications to the Company and the Finanaal Services Authority As a sesult, any member holding 3% or more of the voung nghts in the Company who
grants the Chairman a discretionary proxy in respect of some or all of those votng rights and so would otherwise have a nonfteanon obligation under the
Dhsclosure and Transparency Rules, need not make a separate notification to the Company and the Finanaial Services Authority

Copes of the service agreements and letters of appoinrment berween the Company and trs Directors will be avatlable for inspection ar the registered office of the
Company during usual business hours on any weekday (Sarurdays, Sundays and Bank Helidays excluded) unul the date of the meeung and also on the date and
at the place of the meening from half an hour before the meeting unul the wonctusion of the meeung
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PROXY FORM
INFRASTRATA PLC

Proxy Form for use by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) of InfraStrata plc (the “Company”) to
be held at the offices of Buchanan Communications Limited, 107 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6DN, United Kingdom
on Tuesday 21 January 2014 at 11.00 a.m.

Please read the Notice of the AGM and the accompanying notes carefully before completing this Proxy Form
As a Shareholder of the Company you have the right to attend, speak at and vote at the AGM If you cannot, or do not
want to attend the AGM, but still want to vote, you can appoint someone to attend the AGM and vote on your behalf

That person 1s known as a “proxy” You can use this Proxy Form to appoint the Chairman of the AGM, or someone else,
as your proxy Your proxy does not need 1o be a Shareholder of the Company

1/We, {in BLOCK CAPITALS please)

being a Sharcholder/Shareholders of InfraStrata plc, appoint the Charrman of the AGM or

(see note 1) as my/our proxy to attend and, on a poll, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf as indicated below at the
AGM and at any adjournment thereof (see notes below)

Please clearly mark the boxes below to mstruct your proxy how to vote

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS For Aganst Vote witheld Discretionary

1 To recewe the Report and Accounts
for the year ended 31 July 2013

2 To re-appownt Nexia Smth &
Williamson Audit Limuted as auditors
at a remuneration to be determined by
the Directors

3 To re-elect Stewart McGarnity

4 To re-elect Andrew Hindle

5 To re-elect William Colvin

6 To grant the directors authonty to

allot shares on the basis set out 1n the

Notice of AGM

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

7 'To disapply pre-emption nghts on
the basis set out 1n the Notice of AGM

Signature(s) (see note 8) Date 20

Please complete and send this proxy form to Capita Asset Services, PXS, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU
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Notes to the Proxy Form

1

10

11

62

A proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent you If you wish to appoint as a proxy
a person other than the Chairman of the AGM, please delete the words “the Chairman of the AGM” and 1nsert the name of the
other person All alterations made to this Proxy Form must be 1rutialled by the signatory If you sign and return this Proxy Form
with no name inserted in the box, the Chairman of the AGM will be deemed to be your proxy If the proxy 1s being apponted
1n relatron to less than your full voung entitlement, please enter the number of shares m relation to which they are authorised

to act as your proxy If left blank your proxy will be deemed to be authorised 1n respect of your full voung entitlement (or if this
Proxy Form has been tssued 1n respect of a designated account for a shareholder, the full voting entitlement for that designated
account)

To be effective, this Proxy Form (together wath any power of attorney or other authority (1f any) under which 1t 1s signed, or a
notanally certified copy of such authonty) must be received by post or (during normal business hours only) by hand ar the office
of the Company’s Registrars, betng Capira Asser Services at The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, by
no later than 11 00 a m on 17 January 2014

You are entitled to appoint more than one proxy provided that each proxy 15 appointed to exercise nights attached to a different
share or shares held by you You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share To appoint
more than one proxy, {an) additional Proxy Form{s) may be obtained by contacting the Regustrars helpline on +44 (0)871 664
0300 (calls cost 10 p per minute plus network extras) or you may photocopy this form Please indicate next to the proxy holder’s
name the number of shares mn relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy Please also indicate by ticking the box
provided 1f the proxy instruction 15 one of multiple instructions being given All forms must be sygned and should be returned
together in the same envelope

Completion and rerurn of this Proxy Form will not prevent you from attending 1n person and voung at the AGM should you
subsequently decide to do so

1f you wish your proxy to cast all of your votes “For” or “Against” a resolution you should 1nsert an “X” in the appropriate box

If you wish your proxy to cast only certain votes “For” and certain votes “Against”, insert the relevant number of shares in

the appropriate box In the absence of instructions, your proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he or she thimks fit on the
spectfied resolution and, unless instructed otherwise, may also vote or abstain from voning as he or she things fit on any other
business (including on a motion to amend a resolution to propuse a new resolution or to adjourn the AGM) winch may properly
come before the AGM

The “Vote Withheld” option 1s provided to enable you to instruct your proxy to abstain from voung on a particular resolution A
“Vote Withheld” 15 not a vote 1n law and will not be counted i the calculation of the proportion of the votes “For” or “Agamnst” a
resolution The “Discretionary” option 1s provided to enable you to give discretton to your proxy to vote or abstain from voting on
a particular resolution as he or she thinks fit

In accordance with the permission 1n Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Secunities Regulations 1001 (81 2001 No 3755), only
those holders of ordinary shares who are registered on the Company’s share register at 1800 hours on 17 January 2014 shall be
entitled to attend the above AGM (or 1800 hours on the day which s two days before the day of any adjourned meeting) and to
vote in respect of the number of shares registered in their names at that tme Changes to entries on the share register after 1800
hours on 17 Jarmary 2014 shall be disregarded in determining the nights of any persen to attend and/or vote at the AGM

Thus Proxy Form must be signed by the shareholder or his/her attorney Where the shareholder is a corporation, the signature
must be under seal or signed by a duly authorised representative stating their capacity (e g Dhrector, secretary) In the case of
jomt shareholders, any one shareholder may sign this Proxy Form or may vote i person at the Meeting If more than one joint
shareholder 1s present at the AGM erther i person: or by proxy, that one of them whose name stands first i the reguster of
members 1n respect of the share shall alone be entitled to vote (whether in person or by proxy) in respect of 1t

To change your proxy mnstructions sumply submit a new proxy appontment using the methods set out above Note that the
cut-off time for receipt of proxy appointments (see above) also apply n relation to amended instructions, any amended proxy
appointment recewved after the relevant cut-off ime will be disregarded

In order to revoke a proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending notice 1n writing clearly stating

your mtention to revoke your proxy appointment to Company’s Registrars, being Capita Asset Services at The Regstry, 34
Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU In the case of a member which 15 a company, the revocation notice must be
exceuted under 1ts common scal or signed on 1ts behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company Any

power of attorney or any other authonty under which the revocation notice 1s signed (or a duly certified copy of such power

or authonty) must be included with the revocation notice The revocation notice must be recerved by the Company no later

than 48 hours before the tme of the holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof If you attempt to revoke your proxy
appointment but the revocation 1s recewved after the ome speafied then your proxy appointment will remain valid If you have
appownted 2 proxy and attend the meeting in persen, your proxy appointment will automatically be termunated

If you submut more than one valid proxy appointment in respect of the same share or shares, the appomtment recewved last
before the latest tume for the receipt of proxtes will take precedence If the Company 1s unable to determine which was recerved
last, none of the proxy appomntments 1n respect of that share or shares shall be valid
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